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2021
)

278,716,692 50.69
43,321,132 7.88
34,804,746 6.33
33,350,126 6.07
32,568,366 5.92
21,939,425 3.99
21,884,483 3.98
21,832,443 3.97

488,417,413 88.83

792,255 0.14
60,650,832 11.03
549,860,500 100.00
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2021
9,444,660 50.69
1,467,990 7.88
1,179,402 6.33
1,130,110 6.07
1,103,619 5.92

743,445 3.99
741,583 3.98
739,819 3.97
16,550,628 88.82
26,769 0.14
2,055,754 11.03
(1,135633’15§ 100.00

2021 29 80.08
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2021
)
NATIONAL AUSTRALIA
1 BANK /PREFERRED/ 22,000 [100.42 |2,209,295.00 [101.22 [2,226,840.00 | 9.0%
/AUD/
AUSNET SERVICES
2 | HOLDINGS /AUD/ REGD 2080 10 6 20,000 [100.00 |2,000,000.00 [103.99 |2,079,722.98 | 8.4%
V/R REG S
UBS GROUP AG /AUD/
3 SEGD V/R JPERP/ 2169 2 27 20,000 [99.42 |1,988,433.52 [100.36 |2,007,298.26 | 8.1%
BANCO SANTANDER SA
4 | /AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 2023 1 19 16,000 |99.98 [1,599,663.56 [100.79 |1,612,688.86 | 6.5%
EMTN
WESTPAC BANKING CORP
5 | /AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 2031 1 29 16,000 [100.00 [1,600,000.00 |99.90 |1,598,468.38 | 6.4%
MTN
BARCLAYS PLC /AUD/
6 REGD /R NN 2024 6 26 15,000 [100.58 |1,508,681.09 [103.02 |1,545,288.56 | 6.2%
INSURANCE AUSTRALIA
7 | GRP /AUD/ REGD V/R 2036 12 15 15,000 [100.30 |1,504,506.22 [100.99 [1,514,784.32 | 6.1%
MTN
DBS GROUP HOLDINGS
8 | LTD /AUD/ REGD V/R 2028 3 16 15,000 |99.99 [1,499,919.31 [100.60 |1,509,065.48 | 6.1%
MTN
MACQUARIE BANK LTD
9 JAUDY REGD V/R 2030 5 28 10,000 [100.00 [1,000,000.00 [104.23 |1,042,258.89 | 4.2%
10 [ AVPOL LTD ZAUD/ REGD 2080 12 9 10,000 [100.00 |1,000,000.00 [103.16 |1,031,602.48 | 4.1%
V/R REG S
MITSUBISHI UFJ FIN
11 | GRP /AUD/ REGD V/R 2024 10 1 10,000 [98.87 | 988,708.63 [101.66 |1,016,570.15 | 4.1%
EMTN
12 | ATET 'NCV;QUD/ REGD 2023 9 19 10,000 [100.00 [1,000,000.00 [101.40 |1,014,024.39 | 4.1%
AUST & NZ BANKING
13 | GROUP /AUD/ REGD V/R 2031 2 26 10,000 [100.00 |1,000,000.00 [101.31 |1,013,120.90 | 4.1%
REG S MTN
BNP PARIBAS /AUD/
14 REGD V/R /PERP/ 2170 1 10 10,000 [100.00 |1,000,000.00 [101.16 |1,011,613.09 | 4.1%
COMMONWEALTH BANK
15 | AUST /AUD/ REGD V/R 2030 9 10 10,000 [100.00 |1,000,000.00 [101.11 |1,011,080.89 | 4.1%
MTN
COLES GROUP TREASURY
16 | a5/ REGD V/R NI 2025 8 27 10,000 [100.00 |1,000,000.00 [101.03 |1,010,325.15 | 4.1%
QBE INSURANCE GROUP
17 | \Tp /AUD/ REGD V/R 2036 8 25 10,000 [99.87 | 998,704.58 [100.46 [1,004,639.18 | 4.0%
AUSGRID FINANCE PTY
18 | LTD /AUD/ REGD V/R 2024 10 30 10,000 [100.00 |1,000,000.00 [100.29 |1,002,923.03 | 4.0%
REG S MTN
SUNCORP GROUP LTD
19 AU/ REGD V/R 2035 12 1 6,000 [100.00 | 600,000.00 [100.92 | 605,499.35 | 2.4%
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2021
2021
2020 2021

2017 1,015,782,648 1,059.8
2018 803,807,051 1,031.8
2019 660,550,803 1,030.7
2020 476,251,718 784.4
2020 612,229,973 979.6
327,068,798 523.3
406,981,212 651.1
446,396,086 714.1
451,106,349 721.6
457,816,527 749.4
510,891,957 837.4
476,251,718 784.4
10 461,057,815 762.6
11 549,167,320 908.3
12 579,769,614 961.3
2021 549,860,500 911.7

41/202



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 12,026,181 963,057 92.12 7,377
2018 10,576,180 846,940 96.45 7,724
2019 20,213,545 1,618,701 108.59 8,696
2020 17,536,317 1,404,308 80.81 6,471
2020 21,453,432 1,717,991 108.15 8,661
12,331,233 987,485 62.15 4,977
14,770,752 1,182,842 72.42 5,799
15,826,858 1,267,415 7777 6,228
16,454,002 1,317,636 75.69 6,061
16,748,732 1,341,238 76.99 6,165
18,048,724 1,445,342 83.17 6,660
17,536,317 1,404,308 80.81 6,471
10 17,545,716 1,405,061 81.00 6,486
11 19,518,544 1,563,045 92.08 7,374
12 20,001,494 1,601,720 94._36 7,556
2021 18,633,151 1,492,143 88.34 7,074
59.60 5.30 424.42
55.80 5.20 416.42
50.50 5.10 408.41
47.10 5.00 400.40
2016 26 2021 222.70 21.60 1,729.73
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()
11.94 -2.58
2.62 10.35
4.79 17.87
-19.33 -20.98
100x +
(@)
2016
(2016 26 2016 12 ) 8.20 -1.68
2017
(2017 2017 12 ) 10.78 6.30
2018
(2018 2018 12 ) —9.74 2.21
2019
(2019 2019 12 ) 17.57 19.85
2020
(2020 2020 12 ) ~6.73 -8.75
2021
(2021 2021 ) .16 ~6.38
100x +

2021

2016
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1,603,767 645,303 958,464
(1,603,767) (645,303) (958, 464)
147,604 17,060 130,544
(147,604) (17,060) (130,544)
562,640 742,095 779,009
(562,640) (742,095) (779,009)
10,637 31,523 109, 658
(10,637) (31,523) (109, 658)

60 138,192 640,877
(60) (138,192) (640,877)
90,131 13,635 186,154
(90,131) (13,635) (186,154)
180 33,900 607,157
(180) (33,900) (607,157)
39,818 8,968 217,004
(39,818) (8,968) (217,004)
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90
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2021 16
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131

23 103

2021 29
80.08
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2020 9 30

2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2.9 5 $ 23,824,136 \ 1,907,837 $ 28,295,154 \ 2,265,876
2.1 2,120,893 169,841 2,269,470 181,739
2.11 47,833 3,830 77,539 6,209
2.10 105 8 96,193 7,703
2.4 2 0 - -
25,992,969 2,081,517 30,738,356 2,461,528
29 5 6 - - 144 12
2.1 - - 29,824 2,388
2.4 2,000,004 160,160 1,201,296 96,200
8.2B 26,302 2,106 79,879 6,397
8.2A 21,184 1,696 26,331 2,109
8.1D 19,801 1,586 22,434 1,797
8.26 14,314 1,146 17,159 1,374
8.1A 14,060 1,126 2,125 170
13,279 1,063 31,550 2,527
8.2C 10,521 843 12,753 1,021
791 63 570 46
8.2E 585 47 708 57
39,398 3,155 32,005 2,563
2,160,239 172,992 1,456,778 116,659
3 $ 23,832,730 \ 1,908,525 $ 29,281,578 \ 2,344,869
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2019 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
FVTPL
@
2.7 2.11 $ 648,205 \ 51,908 $ 741,289 \ 59,362
(6,448,432) (516,390) 2,767,973 221,659
2.11 7
(207,457) (16,613) 503,984 40,359
2.2 211 7
)6 617 49 (3,243) (260)
- 32 3 (20) )
(6,007,035) (481,043) 4,009,983 321,119
8.26 192,688 15,430 170,094 13,621
8.28 115,613 9,258 102,058 8,173
8.1A 71,666 5,739 32,294 2,586
8.2C 46,245 3,703 41,005 3,284
8.2A 10,000 801 7,912 634
5,409 433 - _
4,127 330 - -
8.2E 2,569 206 1,672 134
8.1D 864 69 2,791 224
220 18 730 58
21,309 1,706 22,263 1,783
470,710 37,694 380,819 30,496
(6,477,745) (518,738) 3,629,164 290,623
2.7 (1,429,296) (114,458) (1,166,087) (93,380)
(400) (32) @an @
(1,429,696) (114,490) (1,166,104) (93,382)
2.12 - - (1,748) (140)
$  (7,907,441) \ (633,228) $ 2,461,312 \ 197,102
@
FVTPL

61/202



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 9 30
2018 9 30 $ 20,358,159 \ 1,630,281
9,674,455 774,730
2.8 (3,212,348) (257,245)
2,461,312 197,102
2019 9 30 $ 29,281,578 \ 2,344,869
3,809,329 305,051
2.8 (1,350,736) (108,167)
(7,907,441) (633,228)
2020 9 30 $ 23,832,730 \ 1,908,525
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2020 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
$  (7,907,441) \ (633,228) $ 2,461,312 197,102
1,429,296 114,458 1,166,087 93,380
(23,771,909) (1,903,654) (24,158,379) (1,934,603)
27,734,240 2,220,958 16,316,241 1,306,605
615 49 243 19
(6,159,714) (493,270) 2,568,265 205,667
6,448,432 516,390 (2,767,973) (221,659)
207,457 16,613 (503,984) (40, 359)
(1,778) (142) (755) (60)
13,531 1,084 14,674 1,175
@ () - -
29,706 2,379 (11,086) (888)
798,708 63,961 180,606 14,463
) (65,279) (5.228) (20,709) (1,658)
(1,244,138) (99,631) (4,755,458) (380,817)
3,905,417 312,746 9,578,262 767,027
(1,429,296) (114,458) (1,166,087) (93,380)
(1,350,736) (108,167) (3,212,348) (257, 245)
1,125,385 90,121 5,199,827 416,402
(118,753) (9,510) 444,369 35,585
)1 2,239,646 179,351 1,795,277 143,766
)1 $ 2,120,893 \ 169,841 2,239,646 \ 179,351
$ 677,911 \ 54,287 730,203 \ 58,475
$ -\ - (1,748) \ (140)

(€]
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2020 9 30
1.

2013 12 2

11
2016 8 5
2016 9 26 2021 9 16
100
1

2014 1 22

KY1-9007
190 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands

DS
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2020 9 30
2
AUD $
JPY
\
2016 12 16 3 16 6 16 9 16
12 16
5
1
i
3 ii
a
b X
y
100%
2021 2 1
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2020 9 30
2.
IFRS
IFRS
4
IFRS 10  IFRS 12 1AS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL FVOCI  IFRS 9
FVTPL
FVTPL
i)
i) SPPI
) SPPI
i)
iii)
FVTPL
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2020 9 30

SPPI

ECL FVOCI
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2020 9 30
ECL
- FVTPL
- 12
ECL
2020 9 30
2019 10 1
2.1
3

2020 9 30 2019 9 30

2020 2019
$ 5 % 475
2,120,888 2,268,995
$ 2,120,893 $ 2,269,470
- (29,824)
$ 2,120,893  $ 2,239,646
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2020 9 30
2.2
A
FVTPL
2020 9 30 - 2020 9 30 -
$ 23,580,673  $ 23,606,181
243,463 165,278
$ 23,824,136 $ 23,771,459
2019 9 30 - 2019 9 30 -
$ 28,097,104 $ 27,944,844
198,050 90,032
$ 28,295,154  $ 28,034,876
FVTPL
2019 9 30 -
$ 144
B
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2.3

2020 9 30

2019 9 30

2016 9 26
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2020 9 30

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7
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2020 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2020 2019
$ 1,023,350 $ 720,678
405,946 445,409
$ 1,429,296  $ 1,166,087
2.8
2
IAS 32
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
1
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2020 9 30

2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12
2063 12 2

2020 9 30

2019 9 30

2019
$ 1,748
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2020 9 30
IAS 12
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
3.
1
1 1
1 100
1 1,000
2 2
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2020 9 30
2020 9 30
1
17,536,320 217,004  $ 80.811
6,296,410 607,157 10.370
23,832,730 824,161
2019 9 30
1
20,217,608 186,154  $ 108.607
9,063,970 640,877 14.143
29,281,578 827,031
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 1
100%
1
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2020 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2019 9 30 2020 9 30
$ 18,969, 860 3,807,647 (940,904) $ 21,836,603
8,781,845 1,682 (409,832) 8,373,695
$ 27,751,705 3,809,329 (1,350,736) $ 30,210,298
2018 9 30 2019 9 30
$ 10,713,038 9,673,686 (1,416,864) $ 18,969, 860
10,576,560 769 (1,795,484) 8,781,845
$ 21,289,593 9,674,455 (3,212,348) $ 27,751,705
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2019 9 30 2020 9 30
186,154 39,818 (8,968) 217,004
640,877 180 (33,900) 607,157
827,031 39,998 (42,868) 824,161
2018 9 30 2019 9 30
109, 658 90,131 (13,635) 186,154
779,009 60 (138,192) 640,877
888,667 90,191 (151,827) 827,031
1
4.
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2020 9 30

5.1

IMF
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2020 9 30
2020 9 30
2020 9 30
)
JFY 8 - $ - 3 -3 (52,677) $ (52,677) (0.2)%
- - - (41,776) (41,776) (0.2)%
- - - (94,453) (94,453) (0.4)%
AUD 2,120,893 23,580,673 243,463 (2,017,846) 23,927,183 100. 4%
$ 2,120,803 $ 23,580,673 $ 243,463 $  (2,112,299) $ 23,832,730 100..0%
2019 9 30
2019 9
30 ”
JPY $ (29,824) $ - 3 (144) $ - 3 (63,555) $ (93,523) 0.3)%
- - - - (49,335) (49,335) (0.2)%
(29,824) - (144) - (112,890) (142,858) (0.5)%
AUD 2,269,470 28,097,104 - 198,050 (1,140,188) 29,424,436 100.5%
$ 2,239,646 $ 28,097,104 $ (144) $ 198,050 $  (1,253,078) $ 29,281,578 100.0%
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2020
JPY +/- 4_.54% -/+ 2,392
+/- 6.82% -/+ 2,849
2019
JPY +/- 11.33% -/+ 10,596
+/- 6.51% -/+ 3,212
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2020 9 30

2020 9 30 1 1 5 5

$ - $ 8,819,079 $ 14,761,594 $ 243,463 $ 23,824,136
2,120,888 - - 5 2,120,893

- - - 47,833 47,833

- - - 105 105

- - - 2 2

$ 2,120,888 $ 8,819,079 $ 14,761,594 $ 291,408 $ 25,992,969
$ - $ - $ - $ 2,000,004 $ 2,000,004
- - - 26,302 26,302

- - - 21,184 21,184

- - - 19,801 19,801

- - - 14,314 14,314

- - - 14,060 14,060

- - - 13,279 13,279

- - - 10,521 10,521

- - - 791 791

- - - 585 585

- - - 39,398 39,398

- - - 2,160,239 2,160,239

$ 2,120,888 $ 8,819,079 $ 14,761,594 $ (1,868,831) $ 23,832,730
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2020 9 30
2019 9 30 1 1 5 5
$ - $ 9,552,425 $ 18,544,679 $ 198,050 $ 28,295,154
2,268,995 - - 475 2,269,470
- - - 96,193 96,193
- - - 77,539 77,539
$ 2,268,995 $ 9,552,425 $ 18,544,679 $ 372,257 $ 30,738,356
$ - $ - $ - $ 144 $ 144
29,824 - - - 29,824
- - - 1,201,296 1,201,296
- - - 79,879 79,879
- - - 31,550 31,550
- - - 26,331 26,331
_ - - 22,434 22,434
- - - 17,159 17,159
- - - 12,753 12,753
- - - 2,125 2,125
- - - 708 708
- - - 570 570
- - - 32,005 32,005
29,824 - - 1,426,954 1,456,778
$ 2,239,171 $ 9,552,425 $ 18,544,679 $ (1,054,697) $ 29,281,578
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 50
1
10 7,299 129,290
LIBOR
AS51Prop LIBOR
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2020 9 30
iii
2020 9 30
()
$ 14,816,348 62.1%
1,509,345 6.3%
995,000 4.2%
993,800 4.2%
1,497,120 6.3%
1,595,035 6.7%
1,170,535 4.9%
1,003,490 4.2%
$ 23,580,673 98.9%
243,463 1.0%
$ 23,824,136 99.9%
()
$ 12,999,967 54.5%
2,997,818 12.6%
999,048 4.2%
5,580,351 23.4%
1,003,489 4.2%
$ 23,580,673 98.9%
243,463 1.0%
$ 23,824,136 99.9%
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2020 9 30
2019 9 30
()
$ 11,982,028 40.8%
2,715,197 9.3%
1,197,658 4.1%
1,001,307 3.4%
1,743,687 6.0%
1,598,628 5.5%
1,197,616 4.1%
2,749,672 9.4%
3,911,311 13.4%
$ 28,097,104 96.0%
198,050 0.6%
$ 28,295,154 96.6%
(144) (0.0)%
$ (144) (0.0)%
$ 28,295,010 96.6%
()
$ 20,643,582 70.6%
1,003,892 3.4%
4,449,283 15.2%
1,005,198 3.4%
995,149 3.4%
$ 28,097,104 96.0%
198,050 0.6%
$ 28,295,154 96.6%
(144) (0.0)%
$ (144) (0.0)%
$ 28,295,010 96.6%
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 1%
23 8,241 28 2,950 1%
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2020 9 30
B
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
A 2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9
30 Al
2020 9 30
%
i %)
Al 4%
A2 6%
Bal 12%
Ba2 5%
Baal 34%
Baa2 34%
Baa3 4%

99%
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2020 9 30
2019 9 30
%
* %
Al 4%
A2 11%
A3 5%
Bal 4%
Ba2 4%
Baal 36%
Baa2 21%
Baa3 11%
96%
C
2020 9 30 1 1 3
2,000,004 - 2,000,004
26,302 - 26,302
21,184 - 21,184
19,801 - 19,801
14,314 - 14,314
14,060 - 14,060
13,279 - 13,279
10,521 - 10,521
791 791
585 - 585
39,398 - 39,398
$ 2,160,239 $ - $ 2,160,239
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2020 9 30
2019 9 30 1 13
$ 29,824 $ - $ 29,824
1,201,296 - 1,201,296
79,879 - 79,879
31,550 - 31,550
26,331 - 26,331
22,434 - 22,434
17,159 - 17,159
12,753 - 12,753
2,125 - 2,125
708 - 708
570 - 570
32,005 - 32,005
$ 1,456,634 $ - % 1,456,634
15%
2020 9 30
2019 9 30
2019 9 30 1 13 3
$ 58,675 $ - 3 -3 58,675
58,531 - - 58,531
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2020 9 30

5.2
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2020 9 30
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2020 9 30

2020 9 30

2019 9 30

BBH $ (144) $ - $ (144)
$ (144) $ -3 (144)
BBH $ (144) $ - 3 - 8 (144)
$ (144) $ - 3 - 8 (144)
BBH Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
E
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
F
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2020 9 30

2021 9 16

@

COoVID-19

5.3
IFRS 13
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2020 9 30
3
1
2 1
3
3
2020 9 30
2020 9 30
1 2 3
$ - % 23,580,673 $ - $ 23,580,673
- 243,463 - 243,463
$ - 3 23,824,136 $ - $ 23,824,136
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2020 9 30
2019 9 30
2019 9 30
2 3
$ - $ 28,097,104 $ - 3 28,097,104
- 198,050 - 198,050
$ - 3 28,295,154 $ - 3 28,295,154
$ - $ (144) $ - $ (144)
$ - 3 (144) ¢ - 8 (144)
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 1 2 3
2
2
3 2020 9 30 2019 9
30
23
2.2 D
- 2020 9 30 0.8%
2021 9 10 $ 17,640,255 $ 179,212
- 2020 9 30 0.3%
2021 9 10 $ 6,324,951 $ 64,251
- 2019 9 30 0.5%
2020 9 10 $ 20,568,156 $ 136,757
- 2019 9 30 0.2%
2020 9 10 $ 9,218,342 $ 61,293
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2020 9 30
i 2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2
ii
6.
2020 9 30
2019 9 30 (0.0)%
2019 10 3 BBH JPY 504,925 AUD (6,944) $ 20)
2019 10 3 BBH JPY 545,330 AUD (7,500) (19
2019 10 3 BBH JPY 561,339 AUD (7,720) (18)
2019 10 3 BBH JPY 575,035 AUD (7,909) (19
2019 10 3 BBH JPY 602,720 AUD (8,289) @n
2019 10 3 BBH JPY 700,548 AUD (9,635) an
2019 10 3 BBH JPY 776,383 AUD (10,678) 24)
$ (144)
BBH Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
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2020 9 30
7.
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
$ (364,579) $ 72,621
(6,084,468) 2,695,109
615 243
$ (6,448,432) $ 2,767,973
$308, 660 $ (177,768) $ 146,882
(29,833) 357,008
144 4
$ (207,457)  $ 503,984
8.
8.1
A
0.03% 1 3,333 12
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 2020 9 30 2019
9 30
B
2020 9 30
2019 9 30 2020 9 30 2019 9 30
c
0.01% 1 10
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 2020 9 30 2019
9 30
D
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
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2020 9 30
8.2
A
10,000
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 2020 9 30 2019 9 30
B
0.45% 2020 9 30
2019 9 30 2020 9 30 2019 9 30
C
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 2020 9
30 2019 9 30

23
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2020 9 30
0.18% 0.03% 3,333
Actual/365
D
5,000
2020 9 30 2019 9 30 2020 9 30
2019 9 30
E
0.01%
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
F
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
5.3 7 2020 9 30 2019 9 30
6,084,468 2,695,109 29,833) 357,098
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2020 9 30
G
0.75%
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
H
9.
10%
2020 9 30 2019 9 30
10.
2020 10 1 COVID-19
2020 9 30
COVID-19
2021 2 1 2020 10
1 2021 2 1 209 601,458
286,680
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Australla REIT Plus

Statement of Financial Position

September 30, 2020

{Expressed in Australian Doflars)

Assets Saplembar 30, 2030 = _Septembaer 30, 2018

Financial assets at fai value through profit or loss (Mote 2.2, 5) 3 23,824,136 5 28,295,154

Cash snd cash equivalents (Nate 2.1) 2,190,883 2, 260,470

Receivabh for:
Interest (Note 2.11) 47,833 77,538
Unita issued (Mote 2 10) 108 96,183
Securities sold (Nabe 2.4) 2 -

Total gssats 28 992 965 30,738,355

Liabilities

Financial lishilties st fair value through profit or loss (Mote 2.2, &, B) - 144

Bank overdraft {Node 2.1) - 29,824

Fayabies for.
Becwities purchased (Mot 2.4) 2,000,004 1,201,208
Imvestment manaperment fees (Note 8.28) 26,302 79,879
Trustee fees (Nobe 8.24) 21,184 28,331
Professional fees (Note 8.10) 14,801 22, 434
Digtribution fees (Mole 8.2G) 14,314 17,188
Adrrinisirator fees (Mot B,18) 14,060 2,125
Printing fees 13,278 31,580
Fer agent fees (Note 8.2C) 10,521 12,783
Registration fees 791 570
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E) 585 708
Oither iiabifities 46 388 32 005

Lighifies {pxcluding net assets stiributlable to the holder of units) 2 160,236 1,456 778

Mt assets attribulmble to the holder of units (Moke 3) 3 23833730 0§ 29981 57H

The accompanying nobes are an integral part of thease financial etatements.
1
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Australla REIT Plus

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)
Income September 30, 2020 September 30, 2018
Het incomanicss) fram financial inetrumsnts ot FYTPLY
Generated Income (Note 2.7, 2.11) B48,205 741,289
Kl realirsd on financial asssts and Esbiltes st fair value
through profit or loas (Note 2.11, T) (B 448 432) 2,787,573
kel change in unreallred (deprecistion)iappreciaton cn financlal sssets
and Babl|ties at falr value threugh profit or lces (Note 2.2 2,11, T) (207 457) 503,584
Mot reafred gain/{lcas) on forelgn cumency transectiors (Mate 2.8) &7 (3,243)
Mot change In unmealted appreclation(dapreciation) on forelgn curmncy
translations (Note 2.6) g {20
Total (loss)income (6,007 03) 4,005 583
Expenses
Distribution fees (Note 8,.2G) 192 628 170,004
Invesstrment management fees (Note 8,28) 115,613 102,058
Adminitstrator fees (Mobe £1A) 71,688 22,204
Fee agent fees (Mote B2C) 45,245 41,008
Trusiee fees (Mote 8.24) 10,000 7912
Organizaiion expanes 5,400 -
Printing fees 4127 -
Agent memiber company fees (Nole B.2E) 2 550 1,672
Professional feas (Note 8.10) B 2
Registration fees 20 T30
Other exparmes 21,308 2. 263
Tolal expenses 470,70 380819
Oparating profitlcss) befors finance costs (6477 T45) 3,629 164
Finance costs
Déstributions to the halder of units (Mot 2.7) (1,428 266) {1.166,087)
Intmrest expense {a00) {17}
Total finence costa (1,425 656) 1,166 104
Withhelding tax expenses (Nobe 2.92) - {1,748)

(Decreasa)increass in net sisets atiributable to the holder of units from
Opiritions

1,312

DThiis retates b ned incoeme from fnsncial instrurments reeatured of Bie valee through prefl o loss (FPVTPLY) including realeed and
gainsiosses Genarabed

unrealred

on financial sssets and Eabilites at fair valse through profit or loss and

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
F
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Australla REIT Plue
Statement of Changes In Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Units
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Ooooooooooooooooooad

(Expressed in Australian Doflars)

At September 30, 2018 3 20,358,156
insue of units {Nole 3) 5,874,455
Rmpurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (3.212.348)
Increase in nel assets atirbutable o the holder of units from cpembons 248112
At Ssptamber 30, 2018 ) 20,281,578
lssue of units (Note 3 3,809,328
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (1,250,736}
Cwcreass in net aasals o ke of units from (7,907 441}
At September 30, 2020 5 23,832 730

The accompanying notes ane an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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Australla REIT Plue

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

September 30, 2020 _ September 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:

(Decreasa)increass in net assets atiributabls to the holder of unita from opemtions 5 {7,907 441) 3 2,461 312

Adjustments (o reconcile (decrease)increase in net assets sitribatabls to the holder of
units from operafiona to cash used in oparating activitkes:
Distributions paid to the hoider of units 1,428, 206 1,166,087
Purchases of investments in debt securities (23,771, 808) {24,158 379)
Proceads from disposition of ivvestments In debl securities 27,754 240 16,316,241
MNat proceeds from setthermant of imvestments in forward contracts 615 243
Nat [payments)proceads from settkement of investments in Stredumnd Swagp {5,158, 714) 2 568,285
MNet realized osaigein) on finencial essets and liabdEies ot fair value throwgh poofl or
loss 6,448 432 (2,767.973)
Met change in unrealized deprecistioni{appreciation) on financial assets and lisbdities
ot fair valise through proft or loss 207 457 {503,984)
Acombion of Imestments in securites {1, 7TE} 755)
Amorizatson of imestments in secufites 13,53 14,674
(Incraase] in receivables for sacurities sold 2 -
Decrease/{increass) in recaivables for interest 28,708 {11,086)
Increass in payablas for securities purchased 798,708 180,608

(Decreass) in other payables™
Nt cash (used in) opersting actvities

Cash flows from financing activities:

S 1) I i)
—rleA0 | (4T55A5E)

Procesds from units Bswed, net of change in receivables for units issued 3,905417 8,578,262

Distributions paid to the holder of units (1,429,208} {1,188,087)

Repurchasas of unis, net of charge in payubles for units repurchassd {1,350 738} (3,212 348)
Mot cash provided by financing activities 1,125,385 5, 188837
Mot (decroasa)/incrosse In cash and cash aquivalsnts {118,763} 444388
Cazh and cash squividents &t baginning of yaar (Nots 2.1) 2,230 B48 1,78537T

Cash and cash equivalents st end of year (Noto 2.1)

Supplamentary information on cash fiows from cpenating activities
Interest recabved

t Eli‘ﬂm ! EM

The accompanying nobes are an integral part of these financial siatsments.
4
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Ausgiralla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)
1. ORGANLZATION

Australia REIT Plus {the “Series Trust™) is a Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (the *Trust?),
an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituled by a Mester Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman
Islands law. The Seriea Trust waa esisblished pursuant to & Supplememtal Trust Deed dated August 5, 2016 and
execuled by Elilan Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the "Truslee®), a trus! company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman |slands. The manager of the Seres Trust is Cradit Sulsse Managament (Cayman) Limitad (the “Manager”).
The Seres Trust commencad operations on September 28, 2016 and will continue until the Final Repurchase Day
baing the sarfer of Septarnbar 16, 2021, or any subsaquent dats as mutually agresd by the Trustes and the Manages
and the earfiest practicable repurchase day following the occumence of any of the following in respect of a dass of
units; tha net asssl value ("Net Asset Valus® being the value of its iotal assats minus iis Rabiliies Including accrued
fess and axpansas) on any Valuation Day is in respect of AUD Clasa Units ALUD 1,000,000 or lasa or in respect of
JPY Class Unils JPY 100,000,000 or less, and on that valustion day or thereafter the Manager determines that all of
the units should ba compulsorily repurchased by giving notice to all unitholders, or the Trustes and the Managear
agree that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased (this may include, but is not limited io, circumstances
where the Trustes and the Manager agree o compulsosily repurchase all of the units upan the erminabion date or an
early lemination of the Structured Swapa for whatever reason prior to such termination date, each a "Compulsory
Repurchass Evant”.

The Trusl is an exempted unit frust under the Trusts Lew (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman lslands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trusiee (and therefore the Sares Trust) is 100 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Cayman Ky1-8007, Cayman Islands.

The Administrator, Custodian snd Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co.
{the "Administrator”, *Custodian” and "Transfer Agent).

Credit Sulsse Intemalional acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent”), Calculation Agent (the “Calculation Agent™ and
tha Struciured Swapa Countarparty (the “Structured Swaps Countarparty™).

Cradit Sulsse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member Company™).

The Investment Manager and Manager Support Service Provider of tha Sedes Trust ls Sumitomo Misul DS Asset
Management Company, Limited (formerdy Caiwa SB Investments, Lid) {the “Investment Manager and “Manager
Support Sarvics Providar).

The Manager has authorized Dawe Securities Co, Lid. to acl as a distributor (the “Distributor”) of the units in Jepan,

Two classes of unite in the Seres Trust are currendy available for issue: AUD Class Units and JPY Class Units.
This Saries Trust and tha AUD Class Units ars denominatad in Australian Dollars. All refarancas to "AUD" and “$" ara
o Australian Dollars. The JPY Claas Units are denominated in Japanese Yen ("Yen®, "JPY", "¥7).

The investmenl objactive of the Series Trust is fo provide investors with medium-to-long lerm appreciation and stable
income by investing in a liquid portfolio of fixed income securities denominated in Ausiralian Dollars (the “Australian
Bonds" and those sacuriies selacted by the Investrmant Manager baing the "Seleciad Bonds™) and providing
exposune lo a nofional trading strategy (the “Stralegy”) which imvests in a price return Australisn REIT index (the
*Ircanc).

The Selecied Investmants are expecied o generale & certain amount of income sach quarter. Such income is
distributed to unitholders (every March 18, June 18, September 16 and Decamber 16 of each year, starting from and
including Decamber 16, 2016, or, if such day is nol business day, the immediately precading business day) — (the
“Distribution Declaration Data").

Structuned Swaps
The Sanes Trusl invests in Stuctured Swaps, the value of which is linked to the parformance of the Strategy for tha

account of the Series Trust. Fluctustions in value are recorded as unrealized gain and loss. On the termination date,
the Series Trusl recaives a payment from the counterparty based on the valus of the referenced sacurity and record
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Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

a realirad gain or loss. Structured products ams subjact to various rigks including cradil, countarparty and interest rate
risks, as discussed in Nole 5.

In order o provide exposure to the Strategy, the Trustee, in its capacily as trustee of the Series Trust, enters inlo
swap transactions with the Structured Swaps Counterparty. The Structured Swaps am fotal retum swaps of within
approximately one year tenor pursuant of which the Struciured Swaps Counterparty (1) solicited prices to enler into an
urfunded swap linked o the Index by way of an auction proceas from at laas! thres markes! pariciparts and
(i) provided noticnal exposure to the Index and dividends or distributions notionally paid by constituents of the Indesx.

As a resuli, the Truslee for the account of the Series Trust (&) notionally recefved from the Struclured Swaps
Countarparty tha rstum from the performancs of the Index and the dividends or distributions notionally paid by
constitusnts of the Index and (b) noticnally paid (x) a floating interss! rale determined at the ime of entering inlo the
Siructured Swaps and (y) the prices delermined by way of the auction process, Further details of the Struciured
Swaps ara set out balow. Exposura lo the Strategy in principle represants 100% of the Net Assat Value &t the tima of
entry inko the Structured Swaps.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on February 1, 2021.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting polices appled in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies hava been consistenlly applied fo all the perods pressnted, unless otherwise siated. The financial

statements have been prepared in eccordance with Intemational Financial Reparting Standarda (IFRS). The
preparation of financial slatements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and requires the Trustes and the Manager lo exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's
sccounting policies. Areas where assumplions and estimates are significant o the finencial statements are disclosed
In Note 4. Actual results may differ from these sstimaies.

Tha Sedes Trust has adopted Investment Entiies (Amendments lo IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and [AS 2T) (2012) (tha
Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financlal asssts and financial labllites

IFRS 8 contains threa principal classification categoriea for financial assets; measured at amortized cost, fair
through profit and loes (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT). The classification of
financial asssis under IFRS 9 is generally basad on the business model in which a financlal asset is managed and its
contractual cash fiow characteristics.

:

On inital recognition, the Sedes Trust classifies financial assets =8 measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
asset is measured ot amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FYTPL:

i} Itis held within a business model whose objective i to hold assefs to collect contractual cash flows;
and,

iy [Its coniractual terms give riss on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent paymants of
principal and interest (SPPI).

A financial essel s messured et fair velue through profit or lose if eny of the following apply:

i} Itz contractual terms do nol give rise to cash flows on specified detes that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding;

if}y 1l ia not hald within a business modal whosa objective is either 1o collect contractual cash flows, or to bath
collect contractual cash flows and sall;

iy At initial recognition, it is imevocably designated as measured at FVTPL whan doing 20 eliminates or
significandy reduces a measuremani or recognilion inconsistency that would otherwise ariss from
measuring assats or labilities or recognising the gains and losses on tham on difersnt bases.
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Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

In assassing whather the contractual cash fiows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial esset containe & contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contrectssl cash fliows such thal i would nol meet this condition. In making this assesament, the
Sarias Trust considers:

- contingani evants that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverags faatures;
- prapaymeant and scdansion features;

- terms that mit the Series Trust's claim lo cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- fastures that modify consideration of the ime valus of monay (e.g. pariodical msed of interest rates).
Tha Serias Trusl has dalarminad thal it has two business modals:

- Held4c-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents and recaivables for interest,
units issued and securities sold. These financial assets are held lo collect contraciual cash flow.

- Other busineas model: Thess financial assets are managed and their parformance s evaluated, on a fair
value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial aaset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the decumentad invesimaent strategy and the execution of this strategy in practics. This includes whether
tha investment sirategy focusss on saming contractual imterast income, maintaining a particular inlerast
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial essets to the duration of eny related liabilities or
expected cash outfiows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the sassts;

- how the parformanca of the portfolio s evaluated and reported to tha Series Trust's managemant;

- the risks thal affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assats held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed:

- how tha Investmant manags’ is companasiad: 8.g. whather compansation is baaad on the fair value of the
essels managed or the contraciual cash flows collected; and

= the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assels in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and axpactations about future salas activity.

Transfers of financial assats to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derscognition ara not considersd
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Seres Trust's conlinuing recognition of the assets,

Iivi palrmert of Andanclal assets

Tha “axpactad cradit loss™ (ECL) modal applies to financial assats massured ai amortized cost and dabl investmant
st FWOCI, but not fo investmants in equity instrumants.

Based on the Series Trusts assazsment, the ECL modsl does not have 8 material impact on the Sanes Trusts
financial assets because:

= The majority of the financial assets are messured at FYTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply to such
instrurments.

= The financial assets at amortized cost are shorl-term (l.e. no longer than 12mmh}.ﬂhlﬁ1n1dtqudrhrm
highily collsteralized. Accordingly, tha ECLs on such ssals are axpactad to be small.

103/202



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

Now standards, amendments and intsrpratations issusd but not effective for the yoar ended Septombar 30,
2020:

A number of new standards and amendments o standards are effective for annual periods beginning after October 1,
2019 and earlier appication is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not eary applied these new or amended
standards In preparing thess financial staternants && thay do nol have a matleral effect on the Seres Trust's financial
statements,

2.1 Cash and Cash Equlvalents
The Series Trusl considers all cagh, foreign cash and shor-term daeposits with original malurity of three months
or lass to be cash and cash squivalents. Bank ovardraft is shown in liabilities in tha Staternant of Financial Positicn.

At 30 September, 2020 and 30 September, 2019, the Seres Trust heid the following balances as cash and cash
equivalents:

2020 2019
Cash 5 [] 5 475
Time deposi 2,120,888 22688995
Cash and cash equivalents In the Sistement of Flnanclal Posiion ] 2,120,883 [ 2,288 470
Bank ovardraft -

Cash and cash equivalents in the Stetement of Cash Flows [ 1,120,883 [3 iﬁ%
2.2 Financial Assets and Lisbilities

(A} Classification

The Saries Trust dasstfies fnancal assets and liabiBties into tha Tollowing categories:

Financial assals at fair valus through profil or loss:
* Mandatosily at FVTPL: debl securities and Structured Swaps,

Financial sssets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

Septamber 30, 2020 - September 30, 2020 -
Cost

Fair Yalua
Invastrrant in dabl securities 5 23,580,873 § 23,808,181
Investriont in Structiured Swapa 243 483 i
Total financial sssets ot fair value through profit or loas H 23,824 136 § 3,77 459

Seplamber 30, 2016 - Septsmber 30, 2018 -
Fair Valua Cosl

Invvesatrent in debl securiies 5 EEBW.‘IIM § 27,544 Ba4
Investrment in Sructuned Swaps 198,050

Total financial ssssts i fair value hrough profit or loas 5 28,295 154 5 28,034 878
Financial assets at amortized cost

* Cash and cash equivalents, recehvables for interes!, units issued and securities soid.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
* Mandalosily at FVTPL: derivalive financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

September 30, 2019 -
Fair Walus
Investrmant in forward contracts 5 144
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Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

Financial liabilities &t amortized cost

* Other Eabilities: bank overdraf®t, payables for securities purchased, investment management fees, trustee fees,
professional fees, distribution fees, administrator fees, printing fees, fee agent fees, registration fees, agenl member
company fees, othar liabiities and nat assets atirbutable o the holder of units.

rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trusl hes transfemed substantially all
rigks and rewards of ownership. Financial labdities ane demacognized when its contractual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assals and Eabiitias at fair value through profit or loss ara initially recognizad at fair value with transaction
coets recognized in the Stetement of Comprahensive Income. Subsagquent fo iniial recognition, all financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profil or loss are measured ai fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assets and liabilities st fair value through profit or loss’ calegory are presanted in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the pedod in which they arse. Realiced gains or losses on sale of
Irnvestmants are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial agsets and liabilities othar than thoss al fair value through profit or loss are camied af ameoized cost using
the eflective interest rate method, less impaimment losses, if any. This is considered to spproximate fair value due to
the short-lerm or immediste noture of these instruments.

(D) Falr Value Estimation

The fair value of finandal instruments treded in aclive markets (such as publicly traded derdvalives and trading
sacurities) s based on quoled market prices al the close of irading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transker a liability in an orderdy transaction between market participarts
al tha maasuramant data. The fair valua of a liability relacts its non-parformance Ask. Imesiments or othar assats for
which market quolations are not readily available are valued at their fair velue Bs determined in good faith in
accordance with procadures adopted by the Trugiee with advice from the Manager. The resulting changs in
unreakzed gains or losses are reflected in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Invastmant In e Structursd Swiaps

The Trustes, in ils capacity as trustes of the Sedes Trust, has entered into a Struclured Swaps transactions with
Cradit Suitsss Intermnational which are linked to tha parformance of the Index for the account of the Sares Trust. Tha
irede date of the Structured Swaps was Seplember 28, 2016 (ihe "Trade Date™) and the Struciured Swaps are an
Australian Dollar denominated within approximately one year structure (which may be axtendsd at the discretion of
the Struclured Swaps Courlerparty).

{F} Inveatments In listed debt securties

The fair value is based on quoled market prices on e recognized exchange or sourced from a repulsble
broxan'counterparty, in the casa of non-axchange traded instuments, at the Statemant of Financial Position date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

(G) Forwand Contracts

Forward conlracts an commilments either 16 purchass or sall & designated financial instrument, currency, Gammodity
or an index at a specified fulure date for a specified price and may be sefitied in cash or another financial asset.
Forward confracts are valuad using obsarvable inputs, such a8 curancy exchanga rales or commaodity pricas, applied
fo notional amounts stated in the applicable confracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on
financial assots through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.3 Offeetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilites are offeal and the nal amounl reported in the Statement of Financial Position only
when there is a legally erforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there i3 an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realize the assel and seltle the kabiity simultanecusly. As at Seplember 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018,
all financial assets and Eabiites are shown at their gross amourrs a3 none met the criteria for finandal instrurment
offsetting, and therefore heve not been offsel in the Statement of Financial Position.
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2.4 Recoivables for Securitios Sold and Payabloa for Sacuritios Purchasoed

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions that heve been
contracted for bul not yet setlled on the Stalement of Finencial Posilion dale, respectively. These amounls are
recognized initially and subssquently measured at fair valus, less provision for impaimment for amounts of recelvables
for securilies sodd. A provision for impaimment is established when there is objective evidence that the Seres Trust will
not ba able to collect all amounis of recsivables for sacurities soid. Significant fnancial dificulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptey or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators thal the amount of recahvables for sacurities sold is impairad.

2.5 Exponsos
Expanses are recognized on an accrual basis in tha Statemaent of Comprehansive incoma.

2.6 Forelgn Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Prosentation Cummency

The performance of the Seres Trust is measured and reported lo the investors in Australian Dollars. The Trusiee
considars the Australian Dollar as the cumency thal most faithfully represenis the economic effects of the undadying
transactions, events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial stalements are presemted in Australian Dollars,
which is the Series Truel's funclional and presentation cumency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liablites denominated in foreign curencles are fransiated in Australian Dellar amounts at the
date of valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilties, issue and repurchase of units and income
and axpansa Hams danominated in foreign curmancies & translatad into Australian Dollar amounts on tha respactive
dates of such transactions.

Reporied net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on financial assets and labilites at fair value through profit or loss ere induded in net realized gain or loss on
financial assels and kabdities &l fair value through profit or lbas, and nal change in unrealized appreciation of
depreciation on financial essels and Eabilites at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Incomea.

Realirad and unrealirzed apprecistion or depreciation from foreign curmency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Stetement of Comprehenshve Incomes,

2.7 Distributions

Tha Salected Bonds and the Strategy may ganerale a cartain amount of incoma each quarter. The current policy of
the Series Trust i3 fo pay to unitholders 8 quarterly distribution in respect of each distribution date of an amount
similar o the generated income afiributable fo the comesponding distribution period,

The quarlerdy distribution i expected to be compuled from the following separate elements:
{7y an amaunt equal to the coupons received on the Selected Bonds (net of applicable taxes):

(i) an amournt equal to the retumn from the performance of the Index and the dividends or distibutions paid by the
Strategy (net of all applicabls taxes); and

(i) interest accrued on the coupons and dividend or distribution amounts received from () and (i) above, until
pald out on the commesponding distribution date (paragraphs (T) - (i) hereafer eferred to as the “Generated
Incoma®).

The amount of distribution paid in respect of each distribution date is determined by the Manager in its sole discretion
taking inlo sccount Generalad incoma, realized and unvealired capital gains from the Selecled Bonds and Siralegy,
and miscellanecus costs, among other factors, per unit each quarier. The Manager may, in circumstances where it
deams appropriate, elect that a quartery distribulion B nol payable in of quarkar,
Cireumstancas whara the Manager may make such an alaction, includa bul are not limitad 1o whar it delermines in
its sole discretion that application of the Sedes Trusts investmenl objeclives and policies have generated a negalive
parformance owver the prewious quarter or have underperformad to the extent that the Manager deams i appropriale
o make such an election.
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Digtributions deciared and paid during the years anded Saptember 30, 2020 and Ssplembar 30, 2019 wers as
followa:

2020 gl
Total Amount Total Amourt
AUD Class Units k] 1,023,350 § T20.8678
JPY Class Units 46 445 408
1,420,208 ] 1,186 087
2.8 Repurchasas of Units

The Series Trust has two classes of units which are repurchased at the holder's oplion. The Series Trust classifies its
putiable instrumanis as liabilities in accordanca with 1AS 32 (Amandment) 'Finencial instrumants: Presontation’,

The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial Babity to be dassified
as squity whers cartain strict oriteria are met. Thoss criteria includac

« The puitable instrumenis must entitle the holder to 8 pro-rata share of nel sssets;
= The puitable instrurnents must be the mosl subordinated class and class festures mus! be identical;

+* Thers must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash o another financial asast ather than the obligation on
the issuer to repurchase; and

= The tolal expeciad cash flows from the puttable inslrument over its life must be based subsiantially on the profit
or loss of the issuer.

The Seres Trust's participating units do nol meet all of these conditions and are accordingly classified as financial
liabilites at September 30, 2020 and Seplember 30, 2018.

Units can be put back o the Seriea Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Seres Trusls Met
Assal Valus.

Linits are camied al the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back info the Serias Trust.

Undts are ssusd and repurchassd at prices based on the Series Truat's Net Asset Valua per unit at the lima of ssus
or repurchase. The Serdes Trust's Net Assel Value per unit is calculated by dividing the net assels attributable o the
naldar of aach class of units with tha total number of outsianding units for sach respactive class. Reler to Mote 3 for
further discussion.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee mnd the Manager, on behall of the Sedes Trusl, enter into certain contracts thal contain a varkety of
indamnifications. Tha Seres Trust's maximum sxposuns under these arangaments i unknown. However, the Saernes
Trust has nol had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remate.

2.10 Recalvablas for Units lssusd and Payables for Units Repurchased

Recaivabie for units issuad (s camied al the issuance amouni that is receivable at the Stalement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of unils is camied at the repurchase amount that is payeble ot the Statement of
Financial Position data.

2.11 Net income/(loss) from financial insbruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealzed gain or loss on finandal assels and
lisbiliies and Ganerated Income. Nei realized gain or loas from financial instrumenis st FYTPL & calculated using the
firsd in, firsl oul method. Net realized gain or loes on financlal assets and labiliies at FYTPL represents the difference
batwean the cost of the financial instrumants and its settiement price of tha sale trade.

Net change in unrealized (depreciation)/epprediation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the
difference between the camying amount of & financial instrument st the beginning of the periad, or the tranesction
price if it was purchased in the cument reporting pevicd and its camying amount at the end of the reporting period.

1"
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Intesrast incorna is calculated wsing the effective intssest mathod and recordad on an accrual basis. Intsrest income
and expensa, where relevant presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise dividend on financial
assets and financial labilties messured al FVTFL. Interest income is included as part of Generated Income.

2.12 Taxation

Tha Trust has received an undartaking from the Cayman Islands Govemnmant sxempting & from all local income,
profits and capital gains taxes urtil December 2, 2083, No such taxes ane levied in the Cayman islands at the present
tima.

The Seres Trust could incur withholding tewes imposed by cerlsin countries on investmant income and capital gains.
Such Incoma or gain would be racorded gross of withholding taxes in tha Statement of Comprahaensive Incoma.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separste item in the Stalement of Comprehensive incame.

No withholding tex expense was paid for the year ended September 30, 2020,
For the year ended September 30, 2019 taxes were comprised of the following balance:
2018

Withholding Taes on Interest H 1,748

The Seras Trust may choose to imsast in securities domiciled in couniries other than the Cayman Islands. Many of
these foreign countries have tex laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be epplicable to non-residents
inchuding the Sedies Trusl Thess capital gains taxes are required 1o be detarmined on a self-assessment basls and,
therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Series Trust's broker on a "withholding” basis.

In accordance with LS 12 income Taxes, the Senes Trust is required o recognize a tax lability whan it is probable
that the tax lews of foreign countries require a tax liability o be assessed on the Sedes Trust's capital gains sourced
frofn such forelgn country, assuming the relevart tadng authorities hava Rill Mmowledga of all the facts and
circumstances, The tex liability is then measured &l the amount expecied to be paid io the relevant texation
suthorities using the tax laws and retes thal have baen enacted or substantively anacted by the end of tha reporting
year. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacled tax law Is applied to offshore Investment Seres Trusis.
This creates uncartainty about whather or not a tax liability will ultimately ba paid by the Sares Trusl. Tharefora,
when messufing any uncertsin tax labiltes management considers all of the relevant facts and crcumstances
available af the time which could influsnce the likelihcod of paymest, including any farmal or informal practices of the
relevant tax suthorities.

As al September 30, 2020 and Saptember 30, 2019, the Manager has delarmined that the Saras Trust did not have
o liability to record for any unrecognized tax benefils in the accompanying finoncl stalements. While this represents
the Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempl to collect taxes on capital

gains eamed by the Series Trust. This could happen withoul giving prior waming, possibly on a retrospective basis,
and could resull in a loes to the Series Trust.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Sedes Trust is calculeted by dividing the Nel Asset Value of the Series Trust
by the tolal number of units of the Sares Trusi then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of

the Series Trus! af the ciose of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purpeses, in respect of ALD Class Linits is calculated and paid in Australian Dollars and in
respact of JFY Class Units, in Yan.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unil and orders may not include fractions. All unitholders
must complate & subecription application. The initial purchasa price for AUD Class Units is $100 per unit and for JFY
Class Units is ¥1,000 per unit, respectively. All payments in respect of AUD Class Units, must be made in Australian
Dodlars and in respact of JPY Class Units, musi ba made in Yen. Tha Trustss may reject any subscription for any
reason and without providing reascns.

After the initial izsue of units, an eligible investor mey subscribe for units on any subsequent subacription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments in respect of AUD Class Units, shall be made in Australian Dollars and in
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regpact of JPY Clase Units, shall ba mads in Yen. The Trustea may mn§ect any subscriplion for any resson and
without providing reasona.

The Trusies or its duly designated agent musl receive the subscriplion price for the unis on or prior to 2:00 pm.
mmﬂ;:&wmmmmmwmmm relevant subscripion date. Subscription applications
are ¢

The total net assets, units cutstanding and nat assels value per unit as of Septamber 30, 2020 were a8 follows:

Neot Assst Value per
Claassa of units Total nat ssssts Units cutstanding unlt
ALD Class Units § 17,536,320 FAE T 80,811
JPY Class Units 8,766,410 BOT 157 10,370

l_onane . sye

The operational currency of the unite is the Australian Dollar,
The total net assels, units outstanding and nel assels value per unil as of Seplember 30, 2018 were as follows:

Net Assat Value per

Ciassss of units Total nat Units unit

AUD Class Units ) 20,217,808 188,154 § 108807

JPY Class Units 5,063,970 840,877 14,143
5 78,284,578 827,00

The operational currency of the units iz the Ausiralian Dellar,

As of Septernber 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019, all isaued units ware hald by cne unitholdar, who holds 100% of
the intarest in the net assets.

A unitholder may transfer it holdings in units only with the pror written consent of the Trustee which consenl shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Mo transfer of unils will be effective and binding on the Trusies or
unitholder untl entered into the Series Trust's register of unitholders,

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or
a portion of its units repurchased at the repurchase price on the relevent repurchase date (the *Repurchase Prica”).
Repurchasa orders may be submitied in either the relevant cumency or in units. If such notics ia not in respec of tha
entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the register of unitholders then the Trusiee in its scle discretion
may apply 8 minimum repurchase requiremant of 1 unit. Rapurchase notices are imevocabls,

At the tima of sach rapurchass of units prior to the Final Repurchasa Day, no mpurchass fes is applisd to aach unit
being repurchased,

Amounts payabla to tha unitholdar in connaction with the repurchasa of units of any class (s paid in cash but may be
meade in kind (or partialty in kind) by the distibution of securiies held by the Trustee fo the extent that the Trusles, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to ba In the bast intereats of the undtholder. I such a delermination is
made by the Trustes, disiributions to all repurchasing unitholder on the same day is made on the same basis,

Peyment may slsc be made in such other curmency that may be freely purchased with such applicable curency as
a unithokder may requesl, provided that any foreign exchange cosl shall be deducted from the amount payable lo
such unitholder. No such repurchase proceeds will bear intereat prior to actual distribution.
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During tha years ended Septembar 30, 2020 and Saptambaer 30, 2018, the proceads from wnits issusd, repurchased
and outstanding were as follows:

At Proceeds from units Proceads from unlts At
Classesofunits  September 30, 2018 lasued rmpurchased  September 30, 2020
AUD Ciass Unkts $ 15968550 3 3B07BAT 3§ M09800 3 21,636,600
JPY Clasa Lindts B, 7B1 Bas 1,582 (409 83%) B,373 695
Totml 5 ar7E,706 & 3808329 % 01,380,738) § 30,210,298

At Procaeds from unita Proceads from units A
Classes of units 20, 2018 insued owchased _Septeyber 33,2018
AUD Units ] 1m0 5 BETIEEE 3§ U.-“H Bﬂ] 18,560,880
JEY Class Linits 10,578,560 ___T88 D751 845
Total § 21280508 § BET4 458§ Eﬂ-ﬂl § 27,751,708

During the years ended September 30, 2020 and Septembar 30, 2019, the number of units issued, mpurchased and
outstanding were as follows:

At At
Classas of units September 30, 2018 Units lssued Units repurchassd __ Sepltember 30, 2020
AUD Class Units 188,154 39,818 {8,968 217,004
JPY Class Units 840,877 180 (23,900} 807,157

The issus and repurchasa of units and payments in respect of such tranasclions will ba suapendad in any
circurnstances where the caloulation of the Net Assel Velue per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder

of such a suspansion as soon as praciicable afler & is imposad or fed. Subscription applications and repurchase
notices cannot be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscripion dale or

rapurchasa date, as the casa may ba.
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Managemani makes sstimates and assumptions concaming the future that affect the reporied amounts of assets and
lisbilites. Estimates are continually evaluated and besed on historcal experisnce and other factors, induding

of future events that are balieved io be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimales will, by definition, seldom equal the related ectual results. The Sedes Trust may, from time to tme, hold
financial inghruments that are not quolad in active markets, such a8 over-the-counter derivatives. Fair valuas of such
instruments are determined by using velustion lechniques. Where valustion technigues (for example, models) are
usad to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewad by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

Tha Sares Trust's activities expoas it lo a vanety of financial risks; market risk (including cumancy risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit sk and Bguidity risk. The management of these risks s carried out by the Manager under
policias approved by the Trustes.

The Sares Trust uses different methods lo measure and manage the vadous types of reks o which i is sxposed.
thasa methods ane axplained below.
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(A) Markot Risk

{1} Currency Risk

Sacurities and Structured Swaps in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in currencles other
than the funclional cumency of the Series Trust. For this resson, changes in foreign currency exchange rales can
affact the valus of the Series Trust's partfolis.

Genarally, when tha Sedes Trusts funclional curency rises in value sgainst another cwrrency, & security
denominated in that cumency loses value because the curmency is worth less giving effect to the corwersion into the
Serias Trust's funcBonal currancy, Conversaly, whan the Series Trusfs functional cumency decressss in valus
against another curmancy, lmmlnmmgﬂmwu

This risk, genarally known as "curmeancy risk,” means that a strong functional curmency of the Sarss Trust may reduce

by the Seres Trust are designed lo profit from forecasling currency price movements. Predicling fulure prices is
inharently uncertain and the losses incumed, i the market moves against a position, will not be hedged.
The speculafive aspect of attempiing to predict abeolule price movemenis is generally perceived to exceed that
involved in attemptling to predic relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various typas of reign currency transactions, the Sedas Trusl or classas thereof, as applicabla,
may be exposed to the performance of a particular cumency or curmencies io contribute o the paformance of the
Saries Trust or class. There can be no assurance thal the Manager will employ a successful currency program and
the Seres Trust or class could incur losses atiributable lo fis cumency acthities when the value of the funclional
curmency weakens against the other cumencies of the Seres Trust or cdlasses. In addition, the Seres Trust or cass
will incur ransaction costs in connecion with tha cumancy strategy designaled by ths Manager.

Thea table below summarizes the Seres Trust's exposune to currancy risks as of Seplember 30, 2020:

Crthar %ol

AL Cash and Anasla pnad Nsl
Iﬁ-;ﬂ. cash Dimbt Structured Lﬂh G Anzal
JopmwsaYen  JPY 3 - % = & - & BZETT) % B2ATT) 2%

Doler usg : = - 1,778}
e - - [T
Austalss Dollar  ALD [] 73 580 17 HWTH
LY L -0

The table below summartzes the Series Trust's exposure to currency risks as of September 30, 2018:

”

g
589

The following tables summarize the sensilivity of the Seres Trust's assets and liabiiities to changes in foreign
exchange movemants al Septembear 30, 2020 and Saptember 30, 2019. The analysis is based on tha assumptions
that the relevant foreign exchange refe increased/{decressed) againsi the Ausimalian Dollar by the percentages
dizclosed in the table, with all other varables held constant. This represents management's besl estmate of
a ressonably possible shift in the foreign exchange rates, having regand 1o historical volatilty of those rrtes.
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Rsasonubly

posslble abif In Irmpect to Barles Trust
Lurney gurrsncy rate JU20 Mot Assaly
JPY - 454N - 2302
UsD - (¥ 8 4+ 2840

possible shift In Impsct to Rortes Trust
Lurrency currsnGy rite 2019 Mt Asarln
P - 11,390 4+ 10,508
usD - 8.51% ++ 3212
(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the rsk thet prices of fooed income securities generally increase when interest rates dedine and
decraase when interasl rates increase. Prices of longer lenm securities ganarally change mors in responss 1o interest
rate changes than pricea of shorer term securities. The Series Trust may lose monay i shor-term or long-tarm
interest retes rise shamply or otherwise change in & manner nol anticipated by Seres Trus! management. When
interest rates fluctuats, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degres of changs in the debt
price of the debt security. The bigger the securfly's duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt
sacurity for a given movemant in interest rates may be. Themsfora, the Net Assst Value may fluctuste.

The following tables analyze tha Serias Trusf's inferast rate sk sxposure. It includes tha Seriss Trusl's assals and
liabiliies at fair value, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

MHan-interest
At September 30, 2020 Up to 1 year 1 - & yoars Over § years bearing Total
Auseta
Financial asseds at fair value through
profit or loss § o § BE180TY § 14,781,584 5 243,482 §F  DEMMN
Cash and cash equivalents 2,120,888 - - -1 2,120,893
Feceivables for;
Irterast - - = 4T 833 47,832
Uniits insued - - - 105 108
Sacurties sold - = - 2 2
Total Assota $ 2120880 3 BB1907TS  § 14781884 $ 291408  § 25092968
Liabilitios
Payabios for:
Securites purchised $ - ] - 5 - 5 2,000,004 ] 2,000,004
Imveatmant managemant feas - - - 28,302 268,302
Trusteo foes = - = 21,184 21,184
Professional fees - - - 19,801 18,801
Diatribution feas - - - 14,314 14,314
Adrrinbsirator foes - - - 14,060 14,060
Printing fees - - - 15,278 13,278
Fep agant fees - - - 10,521 10,521
Registration foes = - = 751 T
Agent mamber comparny feas - - - 5BE 585
Cthar llaiiities - - -
Linbilites (axcluding il sassts i I
attribudable to the holdee of unita) - - - 2,180,239 2,160,238

Total Interestand sonsitvity gap § 2120888  § BE19079 § 14781534 § (18888M) § 23832730
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Non-interest
At Sepltomber 30, 2018 Upio 1 ysar 1-5yoars Cwvar & yoars baaring Total
Aussts
Financial sssals at fair value through
profit or loss § - § 5552425 § 18544 870 5 188,050 § 295184
Cash snd cash aquivalents 2,268,995 - - 4TE 2,260,470
Recetvabias for,
Units issued - - - o8 15% 98,183
Irrtormat - - - 77,538 77,538
Total Assets 5 135899 § 9582426 § 18,544 879 ] 72, 26T §  30,733388
Linbilitios
Financial isbiiRies at fair valus through
profit or loss 3 - ¥ - ¥ = 5 1w § 184
Bank averdraft 20 824 - - . 20,824
Payables for.
‘Secuntes purchosed - - - 1,201,286 1.200, 298
Irmvesimant managemant foas - - - THATE 8,878
Printing fees i - - 31,650 31,5580
Truztes feea - - - 26,331 28301
Profassional foss = - - 224% 2243
Distribution fees - - - 17,159 17,158
Fas agent fess - - - 12,753 12,753
Administrator fees - - - 2125 2128
Agent member company fees - - - TOB J08
Registration fess - - - 570 570
Other lisbilities - = =
Liabilities (exciuding net sasets 2.0 20
sliribulable to the holder of units) 29,524 - 1,428,964 JA88, TR

Total Intarest and senaitivity gep M $ 18844870 3 (1084807T) § 20281878
At Septernbear 30, 2020 and Septemnber 30, 2018, should inferest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basia points with

position will be held for one year. mhmmwhmmmmummuu

The Structured Swaps are & lotal return swaps, where the Series Tresl pays Strucdured Swaps Counlerparty
LIBOR + spread, while it receives the perfformance of AS51Prop Index from Structured Swaps Counterparty. LIBOR
is resel manthly.

(iil} Market Price Risk
The market price of securities owned by the Series Trust may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or Lnpradictably.

MwmmHnrmmmmmmmqmmMmuﬁame
a particular induslry or industries, such as labor shorlages or increased production costs and competitive conditions
within an industry. Dusing a general downtum in the secwibes markets, mulliple sssel classes may decline in value
simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fived income securities.
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Tha tablas balow summarina the concantration in market price risk as at Septembar 30, 2020:

Country Nama Fair Valua % of Mol Assets
Invesiment in securibes

Augtralia 3 14,818,348 B2.1%
United Kingdem 1,500,345 6.3%
France 85,000 4.2%
Japan BE3,800 4.2%
Singapore 1,857,120 6.3%
Spain 1,585,038 6.7%
Switzedand 1,170,538 4.9%
United Steles 1,003,480 4.2%
Total investment in sscurities § 23,680,673 A%
Imrvesatrrant in Structuned Swaps

Australla 243 463 _1.0%
Financlal assete at fair value through profit or loss $ 23,824 138 $5.9%
Industry Mamas Falr Valua % of Mat Asssts
Investments in securities

Banks 5 12,998,967 54.5%
Electric 2,997 B18 126%
Food 999,048 42%
InBurance 5,580,351 23.4%
Telecommunications 1,003 485 4, 2%
Total Investment in securities § 23,580,873 98.9%
Inveatrment in Struclumed Swaps 243 483 1.0%
Financial sseets t fair value through prefit or loss § 23 138 99.9%

Nam Fair Vailus %% of Net Assets
Imvestmants In securities
Australls 5 11,082 028 40.8%
France 2,716,187 8.3%
Jupan 1,167 658 41%
Hothordards 1,004,307 3.4%
Singapare 1,743,887 6.0%
Spain 1,588 628 5.5%
Switzerand 1,157 616 £1%
United Kingdom 2,748,572 8.8%
United States 3,911,311 13.4%
Total investment In sscuritios $ 28,097,104 90.0%
Investrment in Structuned Swaps
Australls 198,050 0.8%
Financial assets at falr valus through profit or loss $ 8,296,154 S0.8%
Investrrant in forward comtracts {144) (0.0)%
Financial Nabiiities fair value through profit or loss $ [144)
§ 28,208 010 BE.8%
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Industry Name Fair Valus % of Nat Assats
Imvestments in securities
Banks ] 20,843 582 70.8%
Eleclric 1,003,882 34%
Insurance 4,448,253 15.2%
Retad 1,005,188 3.4%
Telscommunications 885148 3.4%
Total Investment in sacurities $ 28,097 704 1.0%
Investment in Structured Swaps 198,050 0.8%
Financial sssats st fair valus through profit or loss ¥ 28,298 154 BEE%
Investmant in forward contracts {144) (0.00%
Financial labilitios at fair value through prefit or loss $ {144) (0.00%
H 28,295 010 PE.5%

As the Series Trust's investments are camied at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statement
Comprehensive Income, all changes in markel conditions wil dirsctly affect the total net mssele and tolal
comprehensive income,

An increase in market prices of investments of 1% at Septemnbar 30, 2020 and Septambaer 30, 2018, would, all alsa
being equal, increase nel assets effributable fo the holder of units by $238.241 and $282.850, respectively.
A dacreasa of 1% would, &l alse baing aqual, have an equal but opposite effect.

=1

(B) Cradit Risk
Tha Sares Trust lakes on exposurs o credit ek, which is the rsk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts
in full when they fall due.

Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the market's percaption of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect tha value of
the Series Trusl's investment in that issuer, The degree of credil risk depends on both the financial condition of the
issuar and the larms of the obligation.

All transactions in listed securities are seiled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokars. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is
mada on a purchase once the securitiss have baen recaived by tha broker. The trads will fad if sither party fails to
meet their obligation,

The Irvestrment Manager monitors the Sardas Trust's credit positon on an on-going basls.

The maximum exposwrs to credit risk of all financial ssssls at September 30, 2020 and Septembar 30, 2018 ia the
camying amounis as shown on the Statemeni of Financial Position. No collateral or other credit enhancements are
hald by tha Sares Trust. None of thess assals ars impaired or past dus.

At September 30, 2020 and Sepiember 30, 2019 the clearing and depository operations for the Series Trusfs
security transactions are mainly concentraled with the Custodian, with a Fitch rating of A+, At Seplember 30, 2020
and September 30, 2018, subslantially all cash and cash equivalents, balances dus from broker and investments are
placed in custody with the Custodian. The Struciured Swaps are antersd into with Cradit Sulsas Intemational, which
is rated A1 based on Moody's ratings al Seplember 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018,

The Seres Trusts policy to manage this risk is to invest In debl securiles thal heve an irvesiment grade
by a well-known rating agency, Moody's. The Sares Trust may also imeest in unmated assets where a rating is
assigned by the investmenl advisor using an appmach that i consislenl with the approach used by that reting
agancy.
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Tha following labls summarizes the credit qualiy of tha Seres Trust's dabl portiolic st Seplamber 30, 2020 as
a percentage of net assets,

Rating" % of Not Assols
Al %
Az 8%
Bai 12%
Baz 5%
Baal M%
Baa2 %
Baa3 %
R . J—

*Sacurity ratings, if any, are oblained from Moody s Invesior Sarvice.

The following tabls summarizes the credit qualify of the Seres Trust's debl portiolio at Septamber 30, 2018 as
a percentage of nel assels,

Rating® % of Not Assets

Al 4%

A2 1%

A3 5%

Bail 4%
Ba2 A%
Baai %
BaaZ 21%
Baad 11%

—_—

*Sacurity ratings, if &y, ane obtained from Moody s Invesior Sarvice.
(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity riak axists when parficular investmants are difficult to purchase or sell. The Seres Trust's investmants in
iliquid securiies may reduce the refume of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securiies
st an advantagaous time or price. To the extant that tha Sares Trust's principal iInvestment strategies imvolve non-
developed country securities, derivatives or securities with substantial market andfor credit fsk, the Seres Trust will
tand to have the greatest moposura lo liquidity risk.

Tha tables below analyze the Seres Trusi's financial kabiities into redevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period gt the Statement of Financial Posftion date to the contractual maturity date, The amounts in the tables are the
contrachual undiscountad cash fows.

At 2020 Lass than 1 month 1 - 3 montha Total
Secuntes purchased 2,000,004 - 2,000,004
Imvestment menagement fees 26,302 - 28,302
Trusbes fees 21,184 - 21,184
Profassional fess 18,801 - 18,601
Distribution fees 14,314 - 14,314
Administrator foes 14,060 - 14,080
Printing fees 13,279 - 12,219
Fee agent foes 10,521 - 10,521

fons o1 il
Agant mamber company foas 585 - 5a5
linbilities 33,358 - 30,308

units) 5 2160208 § - 8 2180230
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At 018 than 1 1 -3 months Total

Bank overdraft 3 @824 0§ - % 25,824

Payables for,
;ﬂﬂl‘“ purchassd 1.2#1% - 1,20?;,:‘1'&
mreatment management fess 78, - ETS
Printing bees 31,580 - 31,550
Trustes fees 28,331 - 26,30
Professional tees 22,434 - 22,434
Diatribution 17,158 = 17,158
Fes agant feas 12,782 - 12,783
Administrator fees 2125 - 2,125
Agent member company fises 708 - 708

loas 570 = 5ro

Oiher liabilities 32 005 - 32 005

units) $  daseeu § - 8§  tasess

Units are repurchased on demand at the holder's oplion. However, the Trustee doea not envision that this contractual
maturity disclosad will be reprasantative of the aciual cash outfiows, as holders of these instruments typically retain
them for the medium to long term.

Tha Manager monitors the Seres Trust's liquidity position on an on-going basis.

Liquidity risk iz managed by investing no mors than 15% of the Net Asset Value in iliquid assets.

Al Seplember 30, 2020 there were no Saras Trust darivalive financial instruments with gross setflemant.

The following table summarize the Seriee Truelfe decivative financial insirumants al Seplembar 30, 2018, with groes
sattiemant for which the contractual maturities are considensd to ba essential to an understanding of tha timing of

cash flows based on the Sedes Trust's investment stretegy. The amounts disciosed in the table represent the
undiscounted cash flows.

At Saptembar 30, 2018 Leaas than 4 month 1-3 months Greater than 3 months Tatal
Gross ssttied derivatives

Farward contracls

Dutflerw § 58875 § -8 ol 58,675
rfiow 58,531 - - 58,50
(D) Risk Ma

nagomeant

mthMhmmumr:muwmwwnmmm professionals,
wﬁdﬂpmﬂdquuhmmnnilpnmwpuﬁmmmm maasures, Prospactive imestors shauld
be aware that no risk management system is fail-safe, and no assurance can be given thet risk frameworks employed
by the Manager (e.g., stop-win, stop-oss, sharpe ratios, loss limits, value-al-risk or any other methodology now
known or leter developed) will achieve thekr objectives and prevent or otherwise limil substantal lossss,
Ne sssurance can be given thal the rsk management syslems and technigues or pricing models will accunaiely
pradict fulure trading patterns or the manner in which investments are priced in financial markets in the future.

(E) Capital Risk Managemant
The capital of the Seriea Trust is represented by the net assets atiributable to the holder of units. The amount of net
mmmmwmmmmwrﬁmnmummmutmsmuﬂmumm
daily subscriptions and repurchases st the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust's cbjective when managing
capital is lo safeguard the Series Trust's ability to conlinue as a going concem in order to provide relums for the
unitholder and banefits for other stakeholders and o maintain a strong capétal basa 1o suppor the development of tha
investment activites of the Senes Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital struciune, the Series Trust's policy is
o parform the following:

+ Monlior the level of dally subscriplions and repurchasss relative to the liquid asssis and adjusl the amound of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

* Repurchase and isswe new unita in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Serea Trusl.
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Tha Manage: monitors capsial on the basis of the valus of net asssts atiributable to the holder of units.

5.2 Additional Series Trust's Riske

(A) Custody Risk
NMeithar the Trustea nor the Managar conirols the custodianship of the Series Trusl's emtire holding of securiies. Tha
Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as cusiodians may become insolvent, causing the Seres

Trust lo losa all or & portion of the funda or securities hald by thoss custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification

TmTruuu the Managesr, the Adminisirator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of thair reapective agants,
officers, employees, and affliates are entitled io be indemnified oul of the assets of the Seres Trusl under

cartain circumstances which may rasult in a decraass in Met Asset Value per unit.

(C) Setdemant Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States,
iha Europaan Union and Japan. Farsign satiemant and clearance procedures and irade regulations also may involve
certain faks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically sssociated with the setfement of
United Stales investments. Al times, setfements in cerdain foreign countries have nol kepl pace with the number of
sacurities transactions. These problams may make it difficult for the Manager to camy out transactions for the account
ef the Series Trusl

If the Manager cannot setthe or is delayed in settng a purchase of securities, it may miss atractive investment
opporiunities and caddain of tha Sedes Trust's assste may be unirvastsd with no relurn samed thareon for soma yaar.
If the Manager cannot setfle or is delayed in seftfing a sale of securities, the Series Trust may lose money if the value
of the security then dedliines or, if it has coniraciad to sell the security to another party; the Series Trusl could ba
liabla for amy losses incumed.

(D) Derivatives

Tha Manager may vsa derivalive instruments to hedge the Series Trusi's investments or lo seek to enhanca the
Sarias Trust's retums. Dedvatives allow tha risk eposure of the Sares Trust to increase or decrease more quickly
and efficienty than other types of instruments. Derivatives ane volatile and involve significant risks, incduding:

+ Cradit Risk — the risk that the countarparty (tha party on the other side of tha transaction) on a dervathe
trensaction will be unable to honor its financial cbligetion lo the Series Trusl.

+ Levaraga Risk — ﬂmmmmmmmumwmmmm
marke! movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certgin investments or trading
strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly excead the amount originally invested.

» Liquidity Risk — the risk that certain securiies may be dificult or impossible (o sall at the time that the seller would
like ar &t the price thal the seller beieves the security is cumently worth,

Tha Manager may uss darvativas for hadging purposas for the Saries Trust, including anticipatory hadges. Hadging
is 8 strategy in which the Manager uses a derivalive to offsel the risks essocigted with cther Series Trust's holdings.

While hedging can reduce losaes, it can also reduce or sliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in
a manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or i the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefil of the
hedge. Hedging also imvolvas tha risk thal changes in the valua of the dedvative will not match thosa of the holdings.
being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be
reduced and may be increasad. Thers can ba no assurance that the Sedes Trusl's hedging siralagy will reducs risk
or that hadging transactions will ba either available or cost effactive. The Manager is not required to use hadging for
the Series Trust and may choose not to do so. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek fo enhance the
Sarias Trusls retums, s invastments will expose the Sedes Trust to the risks cutlined above to & greater exient than
if the Manoger used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of dedvelives to seek to enhance relums is

considarad spaculative,

As of September 30, 2020, there were no Series Trusi derivative assets and liabilities subject to netting amangements
and similar agreaments.
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As of Saptambar 30, 2018, had the Sasdes Trust basan subjact to natting arangamants and similar agreamants, the
derivative liabilities would have been presented aa follows:

Gross Amounts Nat Amounits

of Recognized of Financial

Financlal Liabilltles Liabilltes

Gross Amourts Offsat in the Presarted in the

of Recognlzad Statemant of the Ststemont of

Dwrivetive Lisbiltiss  Counterparty Financial Linbillthes Finasncisl Position Financial Position
Forward Contracs BBH L] ) 3 - 4§ (144)
3 (144) 3% - 3 (144}

Related smourts not offest In the Ststement of Financial Positon

Net Amounts of
Financlal Liabil tes
Presanted In the
Statamaent of Flnanclal Camihi Collitaral
Dwrivetive Lisbilitisa  Counterparty Financial Position Instrumants Pledigad Mt Amournt
Forward Contracts BaH 3 ) 3 = 3 - 8 (144}
$ (144) 3 - 3 - & {144)
Counterparty Glossary;
BBH Bresan Brathers Harriman & Co.
(E) Countarparty and Broker Risk

The financial instilutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Manager or its dalegats trades or invasts for the account of the Saries Trusl, may sncounier financial difficulties
and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Seres Trusl Any such default could result in
material loases 1o the Sares Trust. In addition, the Manages may pledge collateral for the account of the Sares Trust
fo the counterparties in ordar to secure carlain transactions. No collsteral was pladged by the Manager during the
years ended September 30, 2020 and Seplember 30, 2018,

The Seres Trust has nol offset any financial assels or liablities in the Statement of Financial Pesition and did not
hold any darvative assets.

(F) Genarated Incoma and Distributions

There is no guarantes the! there will be any Generated Income. Distributions may be paid in whole or in part oul of
imvestment principal atiributaibla to the wnits or, atemalively, the Generated Income may be zero. A disiribulion can in
effect resull in a retum of an invesiors initial capital or capital gains thereby eroding that capital to the extent the
distribution exceeds available income. In conssquence of this possibility, investors sssking capital presarvation may
not achieve this given probable deteroration in the value of the Series Trust's investments caused by dediining asset
values and a relurn of capiial to investors by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchasa
Prica & unitholder recaives back in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unithclder's initial
invesiment.

The Generated Income partially relles on the collection of coupons pald by the Selected Bonds. Should the issuers of
such Salected Bonds fail o mest their obligations, or dus to a riss in tha non-lreaty tie rate applicabls to the Sares
Trust, then the Seres Trust will gain cormespondingly less than investors may previously have ecpected. Furthermore,
if the inlecest rate al which the coupons and option pramiums nolionally received accres falis during the quartady
pariod, this may also bsad to the Generated Income being lower than expacied.

(G) No Intarest in the Selectsd Eonds
The relurn on the units depends, amongs! other things, on the performance of the Selected Bonds. An invesiment in

tha units doas not give a unitholder a direct intarest in the Selected Bonds.
(H) No Intereat In the Structured

Swaps
The retumn on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Struciured Swaps. An investment
in the units dosa not give a unitholdar a direct inlerast in tha Structured Swaps or any underdying assats Bnked 1o the
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Structursd Swaps nor doss R give the unitholder any right o control the actions of the Stuctured
Counterparty, any underying asset linked to the Structured Swaps or any senvice provider lo the Structured Swaps
Counterparty. In arder to offset (whether in whale or in parl} its Bability under the Structured Swaps, the Struciured
Swaps Counierparty or a third party may own an inlerest (directly or indirectly) in the undardying assets compiising
the relevant sirategy contained in the Structured Swaps, however, there is no requirement that any such person must
maintain such an intersat or &s lo the size of any such irenest

d

(I} Early Tarmination of the Series Truat
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for September 18, 2021, the Final Repurchase
Day will ba brought forwand should 8 Compulsory Repurchass Evant occur,

() Other Risk

During tha pariod, tha COVID-18 outbreak was declared a pandamic by tha World Health Organization. The aiftustion
is dynamic with various ciies and countries eround the world responding in different ways o address the outbreak.
The rapid development and Tluidity of this situation preciudes any prediction as ils ulimate impact, which may have a
continued adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown.

Management and the Trustees are monitoring developments relating to COVID-18 and are coordinating its
cpevational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health organizations,
relevant govemmeants, and general pandemic response beat practices.

5.3 Fair Value Estmation and Hlerarchy Designation
The Seres Trust applies IFRS 13, 'Fair valve measuremen! and ufilices the lasl traded market price for ita fair
valuation inpuls for both finandal assets and liabiites.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficent fraquency and
volume to provide pricing infermation on an ongoing basis.

The falr value of financial assets and lisbiities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation

H'mm refarance o othar instruments thal are substantially the same, discounbed cash flow analyals, option
pricing models and other valuation technigues commonly used by markel participants making the maimum use of
marks! inpuls and relying as Ettle ae possible on entity-specific inpuls.

For instrumants for which thers is no active markel, the Seces Trust may use inlamally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and lechniques generally recognized &a standard within the induslry. Some of
the inputs to these models may nol be market observable and are therefore estimeted based on essumplions.
The output of a model is always an sstimate or approximation of & value that cannot be determined with cartairty,
and valualion technigues employed may nol fully reflect all faclors relevant o the positions the Series Trust holds.
Valuations are therafore adjusted, when appropriate, o allow for additional faciors including model risk, liquidity risk
and courlerparty riak.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.
The falr value hierarchy has the following levels:

* Level 1 Inputs are quoled prices (unadjusted) in acthve markets for identical assels or liabiliies that the entity can

acoess &t the measurement date;
Lm!hﬂ#mkmwnﬂmqmdmm%mﬂ1m“mhhm“

liability, sithar direcily or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assat or liability,

The lavel in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is calegored in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowes! level input that is significant to the fair velue measurement in its entirely. For
this purposs, tha significancs of an input is assessad against tha fair valus maasurement in its antirety. If a fair valus
measurement uses observable inputs that require significant acdjustment based on uncbservable inputs, that

120/202



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

maasuramant is a Leval 3 measursmant Assessing the significance of a parficular input to the fair valus
mﬂinhﬂmmﬁnﬂmmﬂhﬁg%*ﬁﬂummmw%

The delsemination of what constibutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advisement of the Manager. The Administralor, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable dala to be
that market deta that s readily avaliables, regulsdy distributed or updated, reliable and verfiable, nol propratary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the ralevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of September 30, 2020 in valuing
the Series Trusf's financial assals:

{Unadjested) Quatad

Prices in Active Markets  Significant Other Significant Fair Valus ot
Finarcial Assets Designated ot Falr  for ldentical Investments Obesrvable inputs  Unobesrvabie inputs mwn
Value Through Profit or Loss. {Lowval 1) [Lewel 2} [Level 3}
Imvestrmant In dobl sacuritios 5 -§ 235808735 B ] n.m.m
i {in Structumd Swaps. = 243,483 = D346
Financial assoets ot fair value through
profit or ices § =5 23,824,138 5 = ] 23,824,138

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inpuls used as of Seplember 30, 2018 in valuing
the Series Trusf's financial assets:

(Uinadjusted) Quoted
Prices In Active Markets  Significant Other Significant Fair Value at
Finarncisl Assets at Falr Valus for identical Imvestments Obesrvables inputs Unobesrvable inputs  Ssptember 30,
Proft or Loss {Loval 1) [Laved 3) 2018
Invastrmant bn debl secuities 5 -5 28,007,104 5 -5 28,087,104
Investrient in Struchured Swaps = 184,050 = 158,080
Financial asseis ot fair value through
profit or loss ] 5 26,296,164 § -5 28,266,164
Flnancial Liabilithes =i Falr Value
Profit or Loss o o
Investrognt in Forwand contracis 3 -3 (144} § -5 (144}
Finarclsl Bablities at fair value
through profit or loss 3 =+ {144} 3 =] 144}

During tha years endad Septernbar 30, 2020 and Seplember 30, 2019 there were no transfers batween Lavels 1, 2
and 3.

Financial instrumeants that trade in markets that are nol considered to be active but are valued based on quoted
markel prices, dealer quotations or eltermative pricing sources supported by cbeervable inputs are classified within
Laval 2, These include over-the-counter derivalives and debt securities. As Level 2 iInvestmenis include posiions that
are not traded In active markets andfor are subject lo transfer resiriclions, valuations may be adjusied to reflect
illiquidity andior non-transfarabikty, which ams ganarally basad on availabla market information.

Ivestmants classified within Level 2 have significant unobsanable inputs, as they bade infrequently.
As of Seplember 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019, the Series Trust did not hold invesiments classified as Level 3,
Valuation of the Struclured Swaps, 88 shown in the table below, is delemined in eccordance with the valuation
modal stated in Appendo 23 to the Offering Memorandum. Refer to Note 2.2 (D) for further details.

AUD Clasa Units - Structured Swap Outstanding at Ssptember 30, 2020: (0.8% of Mot Assats)

Strategy Expirstion Date  Cournterparty Hotional Amourt Fair Valus
Ausirafian REIT Index Strategy  &M10/2021 Cradit Sulsss ImsmaSional § 17840285  § 178,212
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Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)
JPY Clazs Units - Structured Swap Outstanding st Seplember 30, 2020: (0.3% of Net Assets)

Strategy ExpirstionDate Counterparty Motional Amount Fair Value
Australlan REIT Indax Strategy  8/M0/2021  Credit Sulsse Intenadional § 8324881 § 64 251

AUD Class Units - Structured Swap Outstanding st September 30, 2018: (3.5% of Net Asseta)

Siratogy Expiration Daks Courte {otional Amound Fair Valua
Australlan REIT Indax Strategy  BM02020 Cradit Sulsas Intemadonal 20,588,158 5 138,757

JPY Class Unite - Structured Swap Outstanding at Ssptember 30, 2015; [0.2% of Net Assets)

Stratagy Expirstion Daty Cournterparty Notonal Amaunt Falr Value
Australlan REIT index Strategy  8/10/2020 Creedit Sulsss Imemational § 8,218,342 3 1,283

Financial sssets and fabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

{} At Seplember 30, 2020 and Septernber 30, 2019, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and
lisbilities (including recaivables for units isswed and inlerest, bank overdrafl and payables for securities
purchased, investment management fees, printing fees, rustes fees, professional fees, distribution fees,
organization fees, fea agent fees, adminisiralor fees, agani member company feas, registration fess and
other liabilities) ane deamsd short-tarm financial assets and lisbilitiss whose cafrying amounts approximats
fair value because of their short-term nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation technigues.

(i) Net assels atiributable to the holder of units. The Seres Trusl repurchases and msues the unils at the
amount aqual fo the proportionate share of net assals of tha Seres Trusl al the tima of repurchasa,
calculaled on a basis consiastent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the camying
amount of net asssts atiributabls o the holder of units approximates thelr fair valua.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Farward Contracts

The investment Manager enters into forward contracts for the Series Trust by buying forward contracts,

As of Seplember 30, 2020 there were no open forward forelgn cummency contracts invested in the Seriea Trust.

Serles Trust Lovel Forward Contracts Ouistanding at Septomber 30, 2019: ({0.0)% of Neot Assels}

Nt
Unrealized
Setthement Amount Appreciation
Datn ________Counterparty Currency Bought Currency AmountSold ____ [Deprecistion)
1002018 BBH JPY 504 828 ALUID (6, 04) 5 (20)
10032018 BBH JPY 545,330 AUID {7.500) (18}
10500/2015 BEH JPY 561,339 ALD {7.720) {18)
102018 BEH JPY 575,085 AUD {7,205} {19}
10019 BBH JPY BOZ, 720 AUD (8.288) (¥4}
10M0A2010 BBH JPY 700,545 AUD (9,835) {im
1040352018 BBH JPY 778,383 ALD {10,878) (24)
5 {144}

BBH Brown Brothems Harmiman & Ca.
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Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)
7. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

September 30, 2020 _Sepltember 30, 201%
Mat (loss)'gain on financial asssts and labilitiss at i valees
Ewough profit and loss consist of the following:

Met maltrad (loss)gain on imeestments |n debt securities  § (BB4ETH  $ 72821
Met realired (loss)igain on krestments in Struchued Swaps (B D4, 458) 2,688 108
Net realized gain on investments in forwand contracts 618 243
Total net reslized (loes)igain on financisl assets and kabilities at
fuir vizlue through proft or loss S (BAARANY) § FTETETI
Mevemaent in net unrealized (depreciation)'appreciation on
invissbrnts N debt securities 3 {177, 7e8) 3 145 B&2
Moveman in unrealiced (depreciationyappreciation on
investment in Structured Swaps (28,833) 35T 088
Movemant in unreakesd appracition on imestmant in
forvarnd contracts 144 &
Total net change in unrealized (depreciation)appreciation on
fnancial asaets and Babilites ol fair value through profitor loss  § (ROTAST)  § 500,984

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Feas and Exponses

{A) Administrator Foas

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.03% of net assels subject to an annual minimum monthly fee
LiS%3,333, The fees eamed w&uMmlmmm&nvmmMSmhmwa 2020 and Seplember
2018 and outstanding fees payable to the Admindstrator as of September 30, 2020 and Septembar 30, 2018,
hlmdhnhudlnhﬂwn-ﬂnfcmmmrﬂhsmumﬂdwmﬂﬂm respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Cusiodian receives an asset baged fee and irangactional charges depandent on markal demographics of the
assets. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the years ended Seplember 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of Seplember 30, 2020 and Seplember 30, 2018, have been disclosed
in thas Statament of Comprahan give Income and the Statament of Financial PostSon, respactivaly.

i.ga.

(C) Transfer Agant Fess

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of net essets and a $10 fee per transaction. The fees eamed by
tha Transfer Agant during the years anded September 30, 2020 and Seplembar 30, 2018 and outsianding fees
payable o the Transfer Agent as of Septernber 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018, have been disclosed in the
Statenant of Comprahensive Incoma and the Statement of Financial Position, respactivaly.

(D) Professicnal Feen

Professional fees include fegal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended September 30, 2020 and
Seplember 20, 2018, and oulstanding fees payable as of September 30, 2020 and Seplember 30, 2019, have been
disciosad in the Statement of Comprehansive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respactively.

8.2 Related Parly Transactions

Parties are considered to be relsted if one party has the ebilty to control the other party or exercise significant
influsnca over the other party in meking financial or operational decisions. The Trugles, Fee Agent, Manager,
Structured Swaps Counterparty, Imvestment Manager, Agent Member Company, Distributor and Manager Support
Service Provider are all relaled parfes fo the Seres Trust.

There were no other transactions with relaled parties other than those in the normal course of businass.

(A) Trustes Feas

Tha Trustes s antitied fo receive out of the asseiz of the Seres Trust 8 fixed annual fes of US$10,000 per annum
payable annually in advance. The fees eamed by the Truslee during the years ended September 30, 2020 and
Saplamber 30, 2018 and outsianding feas payabls to the Trustes as of Seplemnber 30, 2020 and Seplember 30, 2019
have bsan disclosed in the Statement of Comprehansive Income and tha Statement of Financal Position,

respectively,

7
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Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

(B) Investmant Managomeornt Foos

The investment Manager receives an annual fes of 0.45% of net assets peyable manthly in amears, The fees eamed
by the Invesimeni Manager during the years ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018 and oulstanding
fass payabla to the Invesiment Manager as of Ssplember 30, 2020 and Seplember 30, 2019, have bean disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

judgament of tha Fes Agenl, delermined as ondinary costs and expenses;
1] auditing cosls thal are not includad in the audit fess and ecpenses;
iy annusal fees payable in respect of the Beries Trust or the Trust to govemment bodies and agencles; and
(i)  insurance costs (if any).

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responaible for the payment of any fees related to the Structured
Swaps, any broker fass relating to security transactions, any taces relating (o the putchass of disposal of sacurities,
legal or compensation costs, any communication costs related to investors services and unitholder's meetings,
confirnations, financial reporting and olher reporting, proxies, cosls relating to the Offedng Memorandurn and
Appandix 23 and other similar offering decuments and the costs relating fo the preparation, printing, translation and
delivery of such documents, and any other extreordinary costs and expenses that would nol usually cocur.

The Trusiee has agreed to indemnify the Fee Agent, out of the assels of the Series Trust, egainsl all aclions,
proceadings, claima, coals, demands and expensas which may be brought against, suffered or incuimed by tha Fee
Agent by reason of the performance or non-performance of its obligations or functions as Fee Agent under the lerms
of the fea apant appointment agresment (including all legal, professional and olher sxpenses reasonably and
incured), except where such acon, proceeding, claim, cosl, demand or expense anses from the gross
negligance, bad faith, fraud or witful defsull of the Fes Agent.

!

The Fee Agent is entitled to receive Operetional Costs Fees, accrued on and calculaled as at each valuation day.
Tha Fea Agent is entitied to neceive a fee of 0.18%¢ per annum of the Net Asset Value and a fes of 0.03% per annum
of the Met Asset Value (sublect lo a minimum monthly fee of USD3,333) (logether the "Operational Costs Fess™).

The Cperatonal Costs Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets of the

socrued, from and exduding, for the first sccrued period only, the inttial dosing day and for all other eccrued periods,
the last day of each calendar quarter.

Formation Expanses inthude offering cosie related to the isauance of unita (including bul not limilad io the faes
related fo the preparation and submission of the Offering Documents) and fees related to the marketing of the Seres
Trust, if any, and othar coels relaled lo the formation of the Series Trusl and the offering of unils, other than those
initially incurred. Such costs and expensses are payabla by the Fee Agant using the Operational Costs Fees.

2018, have been disclosed in tha Statement of Comprahensive Immmmmﬁmw
respactively, 82 a parl of fee agent fees.
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Australla REIT Plue
Motes to Financlal Statements [continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(Exprassad in Ausfralian Doflars)

(E) Agent Membar Company Foos

The Agent Member Company is entitied to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and
calculated a8 at each valuation day and payable quarlerly in amears. The Apent Member Company Fees ane paid by
the Administrator, on bahalf of the Manager cut of the assets of the Seres Trust. The fees eamed by the Agent
Member Company during the years ended Seplember 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018 and outsianding fees
payabls to the Agant Membar Company as of Seplember 30, 2020 and Septernbar 30, 2019, have bsan disclossd in
the Statement of Comprehensive income and the Statement of Financial Position, reapectively.

(F) Btructured Swaps Counterparty

The Seres Trust is permitted fo enter inlo Strectured Swaps with Cradit Suisse intemational, a related party lo the
Manager. Opan Structured Swaps coniracis al September 30, 2020 and Saptember 30, 2019, are discussad in Nola
5.3 and Note 7. During the years ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018, there was nel realized
(loas)fgain of $(6,084488) and 52695109, respactively, and thera was change in unrealized
(depreciation)appreciation of $(29,833) and $357,088, respeclively, on Struclured Swape with Credil Suisse
Intemational which is disclosed in the Statement of Comprahensive Incoma,

The Sedes Trust may bear other scpensas relaled io is operations including bul nol limited lo brokerage fees,
commissions, and other portfolio transaction expenaes.

(G) Distribution Fees

In respect of each class of units, the Distributor s entitled o receive a fee of 0.75% per annum of the Nel Assel Value
accrued on and calculsled as al each valuation day muliplied by the fraction of units of such class for which the
Distributor is unitholder divided by the tolal number of units issued in respect of such class of units, and payable
manthly in arraars (e "Distribution Faes®). Tha Distribution Faes are payabls by the Administrator, on bahalf of the
Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trus!. The fees eamed by the Distributor during the years ended September
30, 2020 and September 30, 2018 and ouistanding fees payable fo the Distributer as of Seplember 30, 2020 and

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

Tha Sanes Trust may bomow up to 10% of its Net Assat Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During
the years ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2018, the Series Trust did not incur any bomowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Tha devalopmant of the COVID pandemic sinca Octobar 1, 2020 is ongoing and ils impact has proven to have an
adverse effect on financial markets. The rapid development and fiuldity of this situation preciudes any prediction as its
ultimate impac, which may have a continued adverse impacl on economic and market conditions and trigger a pariod
of ghobal economic slowdown. Manager and the Trustee do not believe that there i any financial impact to the
financial statements as al September 30, 2020 as a resull of this subseguent evenl.

Management and the Truslee are monitoring developments relating to coronavirus and is coordinating s operational
response basad on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health organirations, relevant
govemments, and general pandemic responss best pracices.

The Trustes has evalusled all subsequent transactions and everts through February 1, 2021, the dale on which
thaga financial siataments were available fo be issued. Effective Oclober 1, 2020 through ubrurr’lﬂ thars
ware subscriptions of $209 and repurchases of $601458. During the aama period, thens wers dllnmm
of $285,880, There are no cther subsequent events o report as relates to the Series Trust.
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2021
27,218,425.63 2,179,652
1,740,019.24 139,341
25,478,406.39 2,040,311
603,127
210,930
911.7( )
7,074.27
88.34( ) ’
)
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2021 29
104.48
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22 38
59 131

23 103

2021 1 29
104.48
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
UsD USsD
34,534 3,608 22,534 2,354
34,534 3,608 22,534 2,354
4 34,534 3,608 22,534 2,354
5 215,000 22,463 205,000 21,418
1) ) 8 1
249,513 26,069 227,542 23,774
6 (143,734) (15,017)  (121,067) (12,649)
105,779 11,052 106,475 11,125
105,779 11,052 106,475 11,125
7 J— J— J— R
105,779 11,052 106,475 11,125

17
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17

2019 12 31
2019 2018
USsD USsD

9 1,436,186 150,053 1,213,367 126,773
10 217,427 22,717 206,873 21,614
1,653,613 172,769 1,420,240 148,387
10 131,329 13,721 3,735 390
131,329 13,721 3,735 390
11 735,000 76,793 735,000 76,793
787,284 82,255 681,505 71,204
1,522,284 159,048 1,416,505 147,996
1,653,613 172,769 1,420,240 148,387

)

)

)

)

)
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2019 12 31
usD usD usD
2019
2019
2019 1 1 735,000 76,793 681,505 71,204 1,416,505 147,996
— — 105,779 11,052 105,779 11,052
2019 12 31 735,000 76,793 787,284 82,255 1,522,284 159,048
2018
2018
2018 1 1 735,000 76,793 575,030 60,079 1,310,030 136,872
— — 106,475 11,125 106,475 11,125
2018 12 31 735,000 76,793 681,505 71,204 1,416,505 147,996
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

UsD UsD
105,779 11,052 106,475 11,125
4 (34,534) (3,608) (22,534) (2,354)
21 2 () @
71,266 7,446 83,933 8,769
(10,575) (1,105) 92,358 9,650
(10,575) (1,105) 92,358 9,650
127,594 13,331 (1,639) (171)
127,594 13,331 (1,639) @171)
188,285 19,672 174,652 18,248

0

4 34,534 3,608 22,534 2,354
34,534 3,608 22,534 2,354
222,819 23,280 197,186 20,602
1,213,367 126,773 1,016,181 106,171
1,436,186 150,053 1,213,367 126,773
9 1,436,186 150,053 1,213,367 126,773

1,436,186 150,053 1,213,367 126,773
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1.
KY1 1104
309 c/o

Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,

Cayman Islands
2.
@

IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB

()]

IFRS
©

USD
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@
(1)
(i)
(iii)

(b)
Q)

(i)

(i)
(iv)

Q)

(vi) @
(vit) (@(i)

®
IFRIC 23 IASB 2017 6  IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23
IAS 12

IFRIC 23 2019 1 1 2019 1 1
IFRIC 23
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IFRS 2015-2017 1ASB 2017 12 IFRS 2015-2017
IFRS 2015-2017 IFRS 2015-2017 2019 1 1
2019 1 1 IFRS 2015-2017
IAS 19 IASB 2018 2
IAS 19
IAS 19 2019 1 1

2019 1 1 IAS 19

1ASB IFRS
2(k)

17

2019 2018
34,534 22,534
34,534 22,534

2019 2018

215,000 205,000

215,000 205,000
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2019 2018
(34,668) (1,315)
(191) (545)
(34,859) (1,860)
(3,119) (3,117)
(105, 756) (106,500)
— (9,590)

(108,875)  (119,207)

(143,734) (121,067)

2029 10 10

2019 12 31

HOLT®

5,000 2018 5,000 2019 12 31
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CS

US
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US
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UK

AMP

US

AMP REIT
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17-20

5-7

CAT

HOLT

PIMCO

J-REIT
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2019 2018

1,436,186 1,213,367

1,436,186 1,213,367

2019 2018
217,427 206,873
217,427 206,873
2019 2018
131,329 3,735
131,329 3,735
2019 2018

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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11.

12.

@)

®)

2019 2018 12 31

©

2019 2018 12 31

@

HKD

HKD uSsD USD HKD

®

2019 2018 12 31

143/202



13.

14.

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

a)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
— 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
— 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
25,573 — 25,573 3,735 — 3,735
735,000 — 735,000 735,000 — 735,000
760,573 — 760,573 738,735 — 738,735
b)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
— 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
34,668 — 34,668 1,315 — 1,315
©)
2019 2018
105,756 106,500
105,756 106,500

2019 12 31
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15.
16.

2019
17. 2019 12 31

1ASB 2019 12 31
IFRS 17
IFRS 3 2020 1 1
IAS 1 IAS 8 2020 1 1
2020 1 1 2020 1
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Cregif Susizes Managerment (Capran) Linited
Financial sistements far the e onded 31 Decamber 2018

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended

31 December 2019

Petarencs
o Mobs
2019 2018
Statement of profit or loss (USD)

Interest income 24,534 L2 hE4
- of which Interest income from instrumerts at amodised cost 34 534 2 hE4
Met interest income a 34,534 22534
Senvice Fee Income B 215,000 206,000
Cther (losses M revenuss (1) ]
Net revenues 249,513 227,542
Genaral, admirstrative and trading expenses 5] (143,734) (121,067)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 105,779 106,475
Prafit befora tax 105,779 106,475
Income tax expanse T — —

Profit after tax

105,779 106,475

The notes on pages Sto 17 form part of these financial statements.
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el Suizse Mansgement {Cayman) Limiled
Fravcal! shrlamants for the year anded 51 Dacamber F015

Statement of financial position at 31 December 2019

A

2019 2018
Assets (USD)
Cash and due from banks g 1,436,166 1,213,367
Other assels 10 217,427 206,873
Total assets 1,653,613 1,420,240
Liabilities (USD)
Other liabilities 10 131,329 3735
Total liabilities 131,329 3,735
Shareholders’ equity (USD)
Share capital i 736,000 735,000
TRetained BAMNINGS TET.264 6815
Total shareholders’ equity 1,522,284 1,416,505
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,653,613 1,420,240

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on lo Sume Lodo

o

Micolas Papavoine
Direchor

Credit Sulsse Management {Cayman] Limited

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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Lol Suizse Management (Cayruey Limided
Financial salements for #e ypear ended 31 December 2019

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2018

Share  Retained
capital  earnings Total
2019
2019 Statement of changes in equity (USD)
Balance at 1 January 2019 735,000 681,505 1,416,505
Prodit for the year - 106,779 106,772
“Balance at 31 December 2019 735,000 787,284 1,522,284
2018
2018 Statement of changes in equity (USD)
“Balance at 1 January 2018 735,000 575,030 1,310,030
“Proft for the year — 106,475 106,475
‘Balance at 31 December 2018 735,000 681,505 1,416,505

The nobes on pages B0 17 form part of these financial statements,
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Crengt Suisse Management (Caymueny) Lirnded
Fingncie! Satements for the year ended 37 December 20719

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2019

Ridwenza
iy Moke

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities I{I.ISE}

Fr.:\-.fi'_ fr_-_r .‘.r|.:_ :r-\,:_._alr 'I 0 i:'. 'I,T--I_---_r al I_ﬁ_ 4-;,-'-?'
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

generated from aperating aclivities

Non-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments:

Interest Income q =4 524) (20 B54)
Unnealised gain and loss L =)
Cash generated from before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 71,266 83,933
Met (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Oiher assats (10,57H) Qo 308
Met {(increase)/decrease in operating assets {10,575) 92,358
MNet increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:

Cther habities and provisions 1547 B4 (1,639)
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities 127,594 (1,639)
Income taxes pasd - -

Net cash generated from operating activities 188,285 174,652
Cash flows from financing activity (USD)

Inferest income 4 34,534 22,534

Met cash generated from financing activity (USD) 34,534 22,534
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 222819 197,186
Cash and cash equivalerts at the beginning of year 1,213,367 1,016,181

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

{UsD 1,436,186 1,213,367

Cash and due from banks 9 1,435,186 1,213,367

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

(UsD) 1,436,186 1,213,367

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements,
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Credit Susse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Snanclal staterents for ihe year ended 31 December 2015

MNotes to the financial statements

1. Principal activities

Cradit Suize Management (Cayman) Limited (the *“Company®) iz incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the admingstration
and management of assetsin frusts, The Company'sregistered olfics is oo Maples Corporate Services
Limited, PO. Box 308, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman lslands.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(&) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Finandal
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable indhvidual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accourting Standards ('1ASs") and Inberpretations issued
by Intemalional Accounting Standards Board ("IASE"). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company s sef out below,

fb)  Basis of praparation of the finandial statemants
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, labilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumplicns are based on
histovical experierce and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the resulls of which form the basis of making the judgements about camying values of assets and Babiities
that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual resulis may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed onan ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision aftects only that
period, or in the pericd of the revision and future perods if the revision affects both cument and future

periods.
©  Foreign cumency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is US Dellars (LISD). Foreign cumrency transactions
during the year are translaled into United States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates nuling at the
transaction dates, Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated info
Linited States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporing period. Exchangs
gains and kosses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Mon-monetany assets and kabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forsign currency
are transtated into Unied States Dallars using the foraign exchange rates rubing at {he transaction dates,
Mon-monetary assets and Babilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
transtated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the lair value was determined, Foreign
currency differences arising on refransiation are recognised in profit or loss,
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes o Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
@)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily corwerdible info known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in valug, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

{a) Other assats

Cther assets are infially recognized at fair value and thersatter stated ot amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubttul debts (see note 2gl), except where the receivables are intersst-fres lcans
madeto related parties without any feced repayiment terms or the effect of dis counting would beimmaterial,
In such cases, the receivables are staled at cost less impalrment for bad and deubitul debis,

i) Frovisions and contingant abiitias

Prouisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal o
constructive obligalion arsing as a result of a past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benafits will be reguired fo setile the obligation and a reliable eslimate cash be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the preseni value of the expenditure expacted to
settle the oblgation,

Where # is not probable that an autflow of economic benefits will be requirad, or the amaunt cannot be
estimated reliably;, the obligation is disclosed as a contingant kability, unless the probability of cutflow of
economic benefits is remole. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
oecurence of non-actumence of one or more future svents are also disclosed as contingent labilities
unkess the probablity of cutflow of economic bensfits is ramote,

@) impairment

Thecarrying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at theend of each reporting period to determine
whether thers is any objective evidence of impairment, If any such objective evidence exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reparting pericd. An impaiment loss is recognised
whenever the cammying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  Impairment losses are
recognized in the profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The impairment requirements have changed from an incurred loss model under IFRS 9 to an
expeched credit loss ("ECL") model under IFRS 9 by incorporating reasonable and supportable forecasts
of future economic conditions available at the reporting date. The adoption of this does not have a
material impact to the Company's financial statements.

() Revenue recogmnition
Prowided thaf it i probable fhat the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and

costs, if apphicable, can be measured reliably, management fee income is recognised in profit or loss
when thie investment management senvice s provided.
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes o Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Expeansas
Al expenzes are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
Related parfies

For the purposes of these financial statements, a parly is considerad to be related to the Company if:
(&) A person, or aclose member of that person's family & related to the Company if that person:
) has cortrol or joint control over the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or
(i) s & member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's parent,

by  An entity &= related to the Company if any of the following condfions applies:

() The entityand the Company are members of the same group (which means thal each parent,
subsidiany and fellow subsidiary is refated to the athers).

(1) Oneentity is an associate of joint verture of the olher entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint vertures of the same third party.

() Oneentiy s a jint venture of a thind parly and the other entity is an associate of the thid
party.

{(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benelit of employees of aither the
Company or an entity refated to the Comparny.

(vi)  The enity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a)

(vii) A person ientified in (2)() has significant influence over the entity or B & member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity)

Cloze members of the family of a parson are those family membars who may be expected to influsnce,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the currert period

e IFRIC 22 In June 2017, the IASE esved IFRIC 23 'Uncedainly over Income Tax
Treatments' (IFRIC 23), IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes and
i to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credite and tax rates, when there is uncerainty over income tax trestments under
14512, IFRIC 23 was effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2018, The
Company adopted IFRIC 23 on 1 January 2019, The adoption did not have a matenal impact to
the Company's financial position, resulls of oparation or cash flows.

»  Annual Improvements fo IFRS: 200 52017 Cycler In December 2017, the lASE ssued "Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle' (Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017). The
Improvements to IFRSs Z015-2017 were effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2019, The Company adopted the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cydle on
1 January 2019, The adoption did net have a materal impact to the Company’s financial position,
results of operation or cash flows,
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Credit S¥sse Management (Cayman) Limited
Mofes to Firancial statements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2012
2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
+  Amendments to 1AS 12 Plan Amendment, Cuttalment or Settlement: In Februany 2018, the
IASE issued 'Flan Amendment, Curtaiiment or Settlement” (Amendments tolAS 19) that spacifies
how companies delermine pension expenses when changes to a defined benefit pension plan
occur. The Amendments to 1AS 19 were effective for annual periods baginning on or after |
January 2019, The Company adopted the Amendments to A5 19 on 1 January 2015, The
adoption did nod have a material impact to the Company’s financial position, results of operation

or cash flows,

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The 1458 has issued a number of amendments fo IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
pericd of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a matenal effect on how the Company's
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented in Mole
2k

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet sffective tor the current
accounting pericd (Mote 17),

4. Met Interest income

2019 2018
Net Interest Income (USD)
Interest income on cash and due from banks 24,534 22,534
Interest income 34,534 22,534

All the above interest income on instruments are at amortised cost,
5. Service Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and management
of assels in trusts.

Fevenue represents investment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

2019 2018
Revenues (USD)
Service e income 215,000 208,000
Total revenues 215,000 205,000
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Credit Susse Management (Cayrman) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternents for the year ended 31 December 2019

6. General, Administrative and Trading Expenses

2019 2018

General, administrative and trading expenses (USD)

Other expansas (24, 665 (1,315
Bank charges {191) (545)
Trading expenses (34,859) (1,860)
Auditor remuneration (3,119 (=117
Direclors’ remuneration (106, 756) {106, 5000
Protessional Services — (9,590
General and administrative expenses (108,875) (119,207)
Total g-mml. administrative and hu:lng expenses (143,734) (121,067)

All of the above expendiures are payable to the Company’s immediate holding company and the Immediate
helding company settles such expenditures on behalt of the Company:

7. Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman lskands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Govemner in Councdl of the Cayman Istands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital tawes until 10 Cetober 20290 Accardingly, no provision for income taxes i included
in these financial statements,

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sparsored unconsoiidated strucfured entities

The Company considers fself the sponsor of a structured enfity when either s name appsars inthe name
of the structured entity or in products Bsued by it or there is a general expectation from the markst that the
Company is assocated with the structured ertity or the Company was involeed in the design or set up of the
structured entity and has a form of invohement with the structured enfity  For unconsolidated structured
enlities that were sponsored by the Compary but no inferest was held, the Company did ned recene investment
management fees from these entities during the reporling period and no assets were transferrad to these
anities,

The below unconsalidated structured entities are sponsered by the Company where no management fes is
received and no interest is held by the Company as at 31 December 2019,

- HOLT® Japan Income Plus Strateqy Fund (For Qualified Institutional lrvestors Only)
The bebow unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fised annual

management fee of USD 5,000 (2018: USD 5,000) is recsived but no interest is held by the Compary as
at 31 December 2018
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Firancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

8. Unconsclidated Structured Entities (Continued)

Asia Equity Income Plus Strategy Fund (Fer Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Alpha Fund (Fer Qualified Institutional Investars Only)
Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Ondy)
Diarwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Cinly)
Principal £ C5 Canadian Equily Income Fund (For Clualified Institulional Investors Only)
TS Global KEIT Triple Fremium Fund (For Quadified Institutional Investors Only)
LS High Dwvidend Equity Premium Fund (For Cualifisd Institutional Irvestors Only)
U5 Small Cap Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Instiutional Investors Only)
Datwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Clualified Instdutional Investors Only)
J-REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Instifutional Irvestors Only)
Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Oualfied Institutional Investors Chnly)
MNEAYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onby)
Daiwa UK High Dividend Equily Fund (For Clualified Institutional Investors Only)
AMF Austraka Income Bond Fund (For Qualified Instilutional Irvestors Only)
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investars Only)
Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
LS Value Equity Concentrated Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
Nissay Japan Equdy Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Only)
“AMP Austrakia REIT Fund (F or Qualified Instiiutional Investors Orily)
J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified |nstitutional Investors Cnly)

Balmaa American High Dividend Equity Liuattro Income Fund (For Qualitied Institutional Investors
nly.

Dawa American REIT Cuattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinzel World Wrap Fund Stable Type (For Qualitied Instftutional Investors Only)
Shirsel World Wrap Fund Growth Type (For Qualified Instititional investors Only)

US REIT Triphe Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified Institutioral Irvestors Only)

Japanese Govemment Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (Far Qualified Institutioral Investars Only)
Australia REIT Fund

Australia REIT Plus Fund

LS Treasury 5-T Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional lovestors Cnly)

LIS Municipal Bond Fund

Tokic Marine CAT Bord Furd

Dowrside Control Equity Fund (For Gualified Institutional Investors Lnly)

Global High Dividend Equily Premium Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

LIS REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Only)

HOLT Eure Equily Premium Fund (For Qualified Instutional lrvestors Only)

PIMCO Short Term Income Stralegy Fund

PIMCO Shart Term Strategy

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund (For Cualified Instiutional Investars Only)

The Company has not provided financial or other support to consolidated structured entities that it was niot
contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide firancial or other support to unconsclidated
structured entities that & is not contractually requised to provide.
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Credit Susse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternernts for the year ended 31 December 2019

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivaiants comprise:

2019 2018
Cash and due from banks (USD)
Cash and due from banks | ,4"515'.1, 185 1 M3 367
Total cash and due from banks 1,436,186 1,213,367
Other Assets and Other Liabilities
2019 2018
Other assets (USD)
Inianzst and feas recanable T 42T 06,873
Total other assets 217,427 206,873
_ 2019 2018
Other liabilities (USD)
Interest and fees payable 131,329 3,735
Total other liabilities 131,329 3,735
Share Capital
Authorised and issued share capital
2019 2018
No. af usp No. af LUsD
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordirary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,030 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
Ordirary shares Tah, 000 736,000 T35,000 735,000

The holdars of ordinary shares are enfifled 1o recenve dvidends as declared from time to time and are entithed
to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. Al ordinany shares rank equally with regard to
the Company's residual assets

Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capial are to safeguard the Campany’s ability to confinue
as a going concermn so that d can conlinue to provide retums for shareholders, by pricing services
cornmensumtely with the level of risk and by securing accesstofinance at a reasonable cost. Asthe Company
is part of 2 karger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and poficies for distribution of excess
capital may ako be affected by the group's capital management objectives. The Company defines “capital®
as incleding all components of equity.
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Credit Susse Management (Cayrran) Limited

Motes to Pnanclal statererts for the year ended 31 December 2013
Share Capital (continued) 4

TheCompany'scapital structura is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard tothe capial management
practices of the groupto which the Company balongs.  Adjusiments are made to the capilal structure in light
of changes ineconomic conditions affecting the Company or the group, 1o the extert that these do not condlict
with the directors' fiduciary didies towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements in the cument period.
Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's financial management policies and
practices descrbed below,

Credit sk

The Comparry’s credit risk is primarlly atiributable to ameunts due from group companies and cash at
bank, Credit risk s defined as risk thai one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial koss to
ancther parly by failing to discharge an obligation, Management reguiarly monitors its risk expesure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carning amount of each financial assel in the statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance,

Ligunctity risk

The Company’s policy s o regulardy monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its contraciual and
reasorably foresesable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the Company's financial labilties, which includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand of undated and are expected 1o be setthed within three months.

Infarast rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the exdent that # earns bank interest on cash and

deposits. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, a change in interest rafes would have no direct matenal
effect on the camying value of the recognised assets or liabilities of the Company,

Forgign currancy risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through cedain fransactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kaong dallars (" HKDS),

As the HKD & pegged to the United States dollar ("USD"), the Comparny considers that the risk of
movemanis in exchange raies between the USD and the HKD to be insignificant,

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments camied at cost or amortised cost are not
rmaterally different from their fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
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Credit Susse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternernts for the year ended 31 December 2019
Material Related Party Transactions

In additionto the transactions and balances declosed elsewhers in the financial statements, the Company
entered into the following material related party transactions,

a) Relaled party bakance shes! transactions

Inaddition i the transactions and balances declosed elsewhers inthe financial stalements, the Company
enlered into the following material related pary transactions in the normal course of business.

_ December 31, 2019 December 31, 20018
Parent Fellow Tevtal Parent Fellow Total
Group Group
Companies Companies
Assets (USD)
Clther assets = 215,000 216,000 = 206,000 206,000
Total assets - 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
Liabilifies and Equity
UsD)
Cther habilitios 25,673 - 25,575 3,735 — 3.735
Share capiia Vb, 000 - 35,000 ¥.35,000 - 135,000
Total liabilities and
sharehokders' equity 760,573 2 7E0,5T3 738,735 - 738,735
b} Related party revenues and expenses
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Elhw Ealhw
Parent  gomponies  Total Parent  Comeanies  Total
Other revenues
{UsSD)
Other revenues — 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
Other e xpenses
{USD)
Other expenses
i 34,668 — 34,668 1,315 = 1,315
) Remunarafion of ey Management Personnel
I!Hhuﬁh"ﬂ-iﬁl of Key Management Pargonnsl (USD) 2019 2018
Short-leem emplopes benefity 105, 7565 106 500
Tatad Remuneration of Key Management Person nel 105,756 108,500

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2019, the immedate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which s incorporated in Hong Kong and the ulimale contralling party of the Comparny is Credit Suisse
Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzedand. Credit Suisse Group AGS produces financial statemerts
avaitable for public use.

Restatement of Comparative Figures

Thie Company firancials have nol been re-stated.

[ 3]
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Credit Susse Management (Cayrran) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternernts for the year ended 31 December 2019

Non-Adjusting Events after the Reporting Period

There are no matesial non-adjusting evenis for 2019,

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but not
yvet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019

Up to the date of Issue of thess financial statements, the 1A5B has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance confracls, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2019 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Company

Effective for avccunting periods

beginning on or after
Amendments to IFRS 3, Oefinibon of abusness  1Jamey2020
Amendments to 145 1 and |AS 8, Definiion of matenal 1 Januany 2020

The Company is inlhe process of making an assessment of whal the impact of these developments &
expected to be in the pericd of initial application. The amendments are effective for annual pericds
beginning onor after 1 January 2020 with an early adopdion permitted. The adoption on 1 January 2020
did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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D) (Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

2021 100

Intertrust N.V.

@) (Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.)

2021
5,000 8,880,800

1940 206(4)-2(c)(3)

®)

2021 781
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Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Australia REIT Plus (For Qualified Institutional
Investors Only) (the "Series Trust"), a series-trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2020, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in net assets attributable to the holder of units and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at September 30, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("'IFRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit 1in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ('ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors®™ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) {"IESBA Code™) together with
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing , as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)
Auditors®™ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors® report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors® report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to
cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

February 1, 2021
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the ““Company””) set
out on pages 4 to 17, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow
for the year other then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2019 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (““IFRS~”~).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs””). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (““IESBA Code””) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors' for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the Audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company ~ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors = use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company ~ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor * s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor * s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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